
DRAFT 

Walworth County Board Finance Committee 

MEETING lVllNUTES 


Thursday, March 22, 2012 


Walworth County Government Center 

County Board Room 114 


100 West Walworth, Elkhorn, WI 


The meeting was called to order by Chair Russell at 9:31 a.m. 

Roll call- Finance Committee members present included Supervisors Jerry Grant, Daniel Kil
kenny, Nancy Russell, Joseph Schaefer, and Rick Stacey. A quorum was declared. 

Others in attendance: 
• 	 Board members: There were no additional County Board members present. 
• 	 County Staff: David Bred-County Administration/Corporation Counsel; Nicki Andersen, 

Jessica Lanser, Dale Wilson-Finance; Suzi Hagstrom-Human Resources; Peggy Watson, 
John Miller-Public Works; David Graves-Sheriffs Office; Kathy Du Bois-Treasurer's Office 

• 	 Members of the public: Alex Tourlakes; Paul Brown, PSJ Engineering, Inc. 

Agenda withdrawals - There were no agenda withdrawals. Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey 
moved to approve the agenda. Supervisor Grant moved to amend the agenda by moving 
Item 9D, resolution related to the Health & Human Services boiler equipment replacement 
and installation, to precede Item SA Consent Items; and to move Item 9A, related to con
cerns of Alex Tourlakes regarding his purchase of a tax foreclosed property, to follow Item 
9D. Upon second by Supervisor Schaefer, the motion to approve the agenda as amended 
carried 5-0. 

Approval of minutes oflast meeting(s) - February 23,2012 - Supervisors Stacey and 
Schaefer moved to approve the meeting minutes; carried 5-0. 

Public comment period - There were no comments from members of the public. 

Unfinished business No unfinished business was presented. 

New business 

Resolution **-04112 Authorizing General Fund Use of Assigned Fund BalancelNet As
sets to Fund the Health and Human Services Boiler Equipment Replacement and In
stallation - Bred reported that the HHS boiler is failing. There has been lengthy discussion 
regarding its replacement. Early estimates indicated the cost could be around $300,000. The 
final estimate to replace the boiler and heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HV AC) sys
tem was over $2 million. The project was subsequently split into two (2) alternatives to be 
bid out. One is a relatively quick replacement ofjust the boiler and some associated equip
ment. The second alternative is to bid replacement ofthe boiler and entire HV AC system. 

Page 1 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

Either way, lead time is necessary to order the boiler. Vendors build these units to order and 
we need delivery before the heating season in late fall. 

This resolution transfers additional funds to order and install only the boiler and related equip
ment, at a minimum. If the Public Works Committee ultimately decides to just replace the 
boiler, this resolution provides sufficient funding. Approximately $340,000 will be needed. 
The public works department currently has $170,000 available for the boiler itself from Reso
lution 63-11111. They need an additional $170,000, which is requested in today's resolution. 
If the Public Works Committee later approves replacing the boiler and HVAC system, then 
additional funds will be requested at a future date. 

Bretl noted that the Public Works Committee wondered whether ordering the boiler ourselves 
was an unusual way to proceed. Would that limit the number ofpotential contractors who 
may bid on the installation? Paul Brown, our consulting engineer from PSJ Engineering, Inc., 
said that is not unusual at alL In many cases, mechanical equipment may be pre-purchased for 
tax savings and also to ensure the equipment is onsite when needed. Contractors who bid are 
aware the equipment was preordered and informed they are responsible for taking delivery, 
inspecting and installing the equipment. Typically, it doesn't matter to the contractor whether 
he purchases the equipment or if the client does it. Russell asked Brown if he felt our pur
chasing the boiler would limit the number ofbidders. He said it should not. Bretl reiterated 
that we will bid out this project both ways, I) just installation of the boiler and 2) to install the 
boiler and replace the HVAC system. When the bids come in, we can then decide how to 
proceed. Supervisors Stacey and Grant moved to approve the resolution; carried 5-0. 

Discussion and possible action regarding concerns of Alex Tourlakes relating to his 
purchase of a tax foreclosed property Bred explained that, in addition to Mr. Tourlakes' 
concerns, this item has larger implications. First, it illustrates the challenges we face with 
special charges and deferred special assessments. Second, Tourlakes raised questions with 
regard to our process to sell tax foreclosed properties. Third, he has been working with Tour
lakes on this since December, 2011 and has had discussions with him, our treasurer, and the 
Lake Como Sanitary District. 

Bretl prepared a fact sheet with the facts he had available. The parcel is located in the Town 
of Geneva. It was appraised for $19,000, and purchased by Tourlakes in October, 2011 for 
$789. We have 3 main categories of issues, according to BretL One may be a non-issue but 
he would like to talk about it. If someone purchases a property like this at a tax sale, as is of
ten the case, they purchase in October and they get the tax bill in December. We have had 
requests before where the new owner wasn't aware they would be getting the tax bill and 
asked that it be prorated. Tourlakes has received the tax bill on the parcel he purchased and 
has paid it. There are two different categories of charges and assessments on this parceL 
The sanitary district placed two deferred special assessments on the parcel, one for water to 
be paid off in 2039 and the other for sewer. Bred believes there was a prorated share of that 
included on each tax bilL Tourlakes confirmed. Bred then distributed a statutory excerpt of 
66.0715. County practice, based on what Du Bois indicated to him, is that in general the lien 

Page 2 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

stays with the parcel. However, Tourlakes pointed out to him that 66.0717(c) states "The 
lien of any unpaid amounts of special assessments deferred under this subsection with respect 
to which the governing body has not taken action under (b) is not merged in the title of the 
property taken by the County tmder chapter 75." What this particular Statute says is that if 
the taxing district is notified, they have the ability to call the entire deferred special assess
ment due and owing. Tourlakes believes that, under (c), the lien should not continue on the 
property. 

Tourlakes thanked the committee for their time in reviewing this issue. Pertaining specifical
ly to the deferred special assessments, he feels it is clear from what he has read in connection 
to the law, if the sanitary district failed to take any action which they are able to take under 
this law and other laws to "protect" their interest in that lien, they lose it pursuant to 
66.0715(c). The Statute clearly states that, in connection with the special assessments, they 
are not attached when the County takes title to the property. The County took title to the 
property and conveyed it to him. He believes that the County has title, free and clear, abso
lute fee simple, and that this lien is extinguished. Because the sanitary district did not avail 
themselves of the protections afforded to them under this law and other laws, this lien is 
therefore extinguished. As background, Tourlakes added that in December he contacted the 
sanitary district regarding his concern that the deferred special assessments would be charged 
on the tax bill he was obligated to pay. When he contacted the district, his understanding of 
that conversation and he has correspondence with them and believes he is pretty clear - the 
basic opinion of counsel for the sanitation district was that they did not receive notice in con
nection with it. He asked for the district's agreement the lien was extinguished if they could 
get beyond the notice issue. Their counsel agreed the lien would be extinguished. This be
came a little confusing in that the district's counsel brought up an issue regarding notice. No 
special, individualized notice to the sanitary district is required. The requirement is for Class 
3 public notice under different Statutes of Wisconsin law. Previously, the county treasurer 
had informed Tourlakes that he would have to pay the special assessment since that is the 
way the County has done it in the past. He added that, ultimately, the sanitary district 
stopped communicating with him as to whether the lien was extinguished. His impression is 
that they may believe the lien is still good. 

Du Bois stated that the County is not statutorily required to send notice to the sanitary district. 
She had talked with Tourlakes, who referred her to legal counsel for the district. She explained 
to their attorney that the County sells foreclosed property "as is" and everything goes to the 
new owner. Historically, they assume responsibility for all special assessments and taxes from 
then on. She then referred Tourlakes to Michael Cotter, deputy corporation counsel. Cotter 
sent Tourlakes a letter stating it was his obligation to pay the tax bill. Du Bois said she hasn't 
talked to Tourlakes since that point in December, 2011. Bred said that, based on his discus
sions with Du Bois regarding past practice, he is not sure if the issue of66.0715(c) came up in 
Cotter's legal analysis. Bred did not know how one would get around the idea that the lien is 
extinguished. For example, if we had a $1 million special assessment on a foreclosed parcel, 
we would never be able to sell it if the new owner couldn't buy it, free of the lien. The ques
tion is that if we provided adequate notice to the taxation district, then they had an option to 

Page 3 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

declare the lien due and owing immediately, with no further deferraL With regard to the pro
ceeds from the in rem sale, Bretl wondered whether unpaid taxes are satisfied first or prorated 
with the deferred special assessment. In a situation like this, there could be a cloud on the 
property until 2039. Tourlakes commented that the outstanding balance of the special assess
ment for this property is approximately $2,350. He agrees he is responsible for payment of the 
taxes themselves but feels the prior owner's deferred special assessments should not appear on 
his tax bill. 

Bretl distributed a sample letter the Winnebago County Treasurer uses to notify the taxing 
district clerk of upcoming in rem proceedings in a similar situation. Du Bois said Chapter 
75.521 of the State Statutes refers to the County needing to give "official notice of the com
mencement of the foreclosure to the last owner or owners and mortgagee or mortgagees of 
the parcel as the ownership or mortgage interest appears in the record in the office of the reg
ister of deeds of the county in which the parcel is situated, and the State of Wisconsin if it has 
a determined but unpaid death tax lien, a filed, nonoutlawed income or franchise tax warrant 
or ajudgment entered in the judgment and lien docket, all in the county where the parcel is 
situated." The municipal clerk gets notice of the foreclosure but we are not required by law 
to serve notice to the sanitary district. Schaefer referred to earlier discussions by the commit
tee about potentially discontinuing making municipalities whole for special charges and as
sessments. Ifwe had done so, would this topic have been included on today's agenda? Brett 
didn't know the answer to that question. He clarified that any decision regarding specials has 
to wait until our tax software has been upgraded. 

Tourlakes reiterated that he believes the sanitary district has more than ample support in the 
law and Statutes to protect their interest in this parcel. They failed to do so. To a certain de
gree, this is a non-issue because the County takes free and clear title, and they should know 
this because the liens are extinguished pursuant to the Statute. Any party that has these de
ferred assessments has the right and obligation under the law to protect them, and the sanitary 
district didn't do so, in this case. The other caveat in connection with the bidders is that the 
County specifically states any tax properties purchased are subject to special assessments af
ter the purchase. This is a deferred special assessment that was done years ago. Had this 
come up after November 8,2011, when the property was conveyed to him, Tourlakes would 
agree 100% that it is merged with the title and comes to him with that encumbrance. This is 
not the case. Russell requested corp counsel's advice. Bretl replied that we are relying on 
past precedent with regard to specials. He doesn't see anything refuting the Statute which 
says the lien becomes extinct ifproper notice is given. 

Tourlakes was asked if he researched the property before purchasing it to determine whether 
there were liens. He said that he had, adding that's why he called the sanitary district to en
sure they were aware of the law. When he spoke with the sanitary district's counsel in De
cember, their counsel agreed the district's lien would be extinguished if the district received 
proper notice. Their counsel alleged the district did not receive proper notice. Tourlakes be
lieves their attorney was under the mistaken impression the district was entitled to some spe
cialized, individualized notice. There are two people entitled to a specialized, individualized 

Page 4 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

notice in connection with tax foreclosures mortgagees and owners. Anyone else is only en
titled to a Class 3 notice, which was properly given by the treasurer in connection with this 
matter. Bred read from Section 75.521(5) of the Statutes, "Every person, including any mu
nicipal taxing district [that's what the sewerage district is] other than the county, having a 
right, title or interest in, or lien upon, any parcel described in the list may redeem the parcel by 
paying all of the sums mentioned in the list of taxes together with interest thereon and the rea
sonable costs ... plus the cost ofpublication ... that the county incurred to initiate the proceed
ings under sub. (3) plus the person's share of the reasonable costs of publication or suchpor
tion thereof, as is due for the interest therein or part owned by such person which amount shall 
be determined by the county treasurer on application, before the expiration of the redemption 
period mentioned in the notice published pursuant to sub. (6), and may serve a verified answer 
upon the county treasurer of such county, provided in sub. (7). The caption of the answer 
shall contain a reference to the number or numbers of parcels ... the answer shall be served on 
the county treasurer and filed in the office of the court within 30 days after the date mentioned 
... In the event of a failure to redeem or answer by any person having a right to redeem or an
swer within the time herein limited, such person, and all persons claiming under and through 
that person, from and after the date of the filing of said list of tax liens with the clerk of the 
circuit court, shall be ever barred and foreclosed of all his or her right, title and interest in the 
parcel described." Based on this statutory reference, Bretl thinks the onus would have been 
on the tax district to notify the treasurer of their desire to redeem the parcel, which he doesn't 
believe they did. Du Bois confirmed that she was not served notice. Kilkenny wondered if 
the clerks of the taxing bodies should always be looking at tax sales and cross checking them 
against their deferred assessments. Bred thinks the Winnebago County letter is a courtesy to 
the taxing districts. He has not found a Statute saying we need to send such a notice. Ifwe 
can assume proper notice was given to the sanitary district, Tourlakes asked whether Bretl 
would agree that the lien rights have been extinguished. Bretl affirmed. Tourlakes then reit
erated his position that notice was proper, the lien extinguished, and the portions of the de
ferred lien he has already paid should not have appeared on his tax bill. 

Discussion ensued regarding how assessments are included on tax bills. Du Bois explained 
that tax bills are the responsibility of the municipality. They notify the county property lister 
of any specials to be placed on the tax roll, and the municipal clerk signs off on the tax roll at 
that point. The property lister keys in the municipality's data and forwards the report to the 
treasurer. The deputy treasurer reviews the report to see if there are any out-of-the-ordinary 
specials. Russell requested clarification. Are we saying that, even if the sanitary district had 
given notice, they would only be entitled to the sale price of the property and that the County 
would not have to make up the difference between that and the remaining amount of the de
ferred special? Bred replied that is true. They have the option to redeem the property them
selves if it is valuable enough; they could pay the property taxes and purchase it themselves. 

Bred said his issue is that, if we find the lien should have been extinguished, there has to be a 
way to remove it from the tax bill without having to go to court. Russell asked ifBretl's opin
ion is that Mr. Tourlakes is correct insofar as he does not owe the deferred special. Bred re
plied that, with everything he has seen, that is correct. We have to get out of the cycle ofhav-

Page 5 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

ing the deferred special on the tax bill. Andersen asked if Du Bois could request that a taxing 
district remove a special ifher office's review during the preparation of the tax bill found such 
charges were still being assessed. Would the taxing district have an opportunity to pull back 
their request for inclusion of the special at that point? This isn't something we have done in 
the past, according to Du Bois. If we contact the municipality, would it then be their respon
sibility to notify the sanitary district? Bretl didn't know the answer to that question. He does 
not think the lien attaches but does not know how to correct the tax bill. We need to identify 
that process. Du Bois expressed her belief that Tourlakes has paid the 2011 tax bill in full. 
The special assessments were on his 2011 tax bill. The municipality retained those amounts 
in their December 2011 and January 2012 collections. In February, they paid the sanitary dis
trict in full for the specials. Had they not been paid, the County would be making the munici
pality whole this coming August. Tourlakes said the reason he paid in full was that he knew 
this would be an issue, based on Cotter's letter, and he was trying to make it simple. 

Grant said we have been referring to this issue as a lien. Should it be on record at the Regis
ter of Deeds office? Bred explained there are a lot ofways to attach liens. The special as
sessment process does not require filing with the Register of Deeds. By virtue ofofficial ac
tion of the taxing district, the special becomes a lien. Stacey asked if the committee could 
send a letter to the sanitary district. Bret! replied that the committee can do so if they wish. 
Russell expressed concern about starting such a procedure. If a letter were to not be re
ceived, could that cause legal problems because we've established a precedent? Bretl said 
the Winnebago County letter seems to be more of a courtesy; pUblication is what is required. 
When you get in the habit of sending courtesy letters and slip up on that, it becomes infirm. 

Tourlakes added that there is another issue with regard to the tax bill itself. There are five 
line items in connection with "other charges." Four deal with the special assessment. There 
is also a charge for delinquent water. Those amounts pertain to the time period when the 
County owned this parcel and did not pay the monthly bills. The Statutes allow delinquent 
monthly utility charges to be put on a tax bill. However, the lien was not perfected during 
the time the County owned the property; it became perfected on November 16, 2011. The 
County conveyed the property to Tourlakes on Noyember 8. That lien, too, was not perfect
ed. He would have had no way of knowing the County was not paying the monthly utility 
bills. Other foreclosed properties he purchased were deeded to him after November 16 when 
the liens were perfected. With that being the case, he paid those delinquent water charges in 
full. He feels the same charges improperly appear on the tax bill for this parcel. Kilkenny 
suggested it might be useful for Tourlakes to send the County a letter outlining his legal ar
guments to bring all of the issues to a concise point. We could use those arguments to devel
op specific policy and respond next month. 

With respect to the deferred specials, Bret! said everything he has seen indicates we are put
ting something on the tax bill that is not due and owing, but he has not been able to find a 
way to fix it. He asked what action Du Bois would recommend. She responded that she 
would like to contact her peers and bring this item back to the committee next month. Tour
lakes was agreeable. He asked that the treasurer contact the sanitary district based on what 

Page 6 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

the County's corp counsel has advised, to inquire if they would refund the deferred assess
ment he has already paid. Grant said the municipality puts specials on the tax bills. Why is 
it totally our responsibility to get it removed? Du Bois explained that the Statute requires the 
municipal clerk to be notified by certified mail of foreclosure. By Statute, three weeks be
fore the property is sold, the municipal clerk is notified that the property will be sold, so they 
do have some notice. She guessed that the issue of responsibility is something we will be 
addressing. She would like to contact her peers to find out how they handle similar situa
tions; provide Bretl with the infonnation; draft a letter to the sanitary district for his review at 
that point; and bring this item back to the committee next month. Bretl asked that our inquiry 
to the other counties include what they do to get these specials off the tax bill. He noted that, 
at times, the taxation district may be adverse to the County. He referred to the City of 
Whitewater's developer's agreement as an example. The City indicated the agreement was 
secured by special charge. We questioned that. The municipal clerks will send items to us 
for inclusion on the tax bill but we should exercise quality control. 

Bretl recommended a motion to hold this matter for 30 days; and direct the treasurer 
to: a) contact her peers regarding the questions presented in this discussion; and b) 
based on that information, potentially contact the Lake Como Sanitary District; and 
bring this matter back at the next Finance Committee meeting. Supervisors Schaefer 
and Grant moved as recommended by County Administrator Bretl; carried 5-0. Mo
tion carried 5-0. 

Chair Russell recessed the meeting at 11 :05 a.m. and reconvened at 11: 13 a.m. 

Consent items - Russell asked that Item 8B3, sale of tax foreclosure properties, be discussed 
separately. Kilkenny would also like Item 8B2, proposal for countywide temporary agency staff
ing services, to be considered separately. Supervisors Stacey and Schaefer moved to approve 
the remainder ofthe consent items; carried 5-0. 

Budget amendments 

Public Works 

• 	 PWOOI - Establish budget to purchase pavement marking paint for state roadwork 
• 	 PW002 - Redistribute budget for contracted janitorial services at the Govern

ment Center 
• 	 PW003 - Transfer funds to replace hydraulic hammer 

Bids/contracts 
• 	 Award bid for mini rotating rack oven and braising pan/tilting skillet for the sher

iffs office-jail division kitchen - By previous motion approving the consent 
items, the bid was awarded to D. A. Berther. 

• 	 Award proposal for countywide temporary agency staffing services - Kilkenny 
asked if this is a new contract. Bretl said we have always had temporary service 
contracts. Hagstrom explained that the cost reflects historical use over the last 

Page 7 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

few years. Because of our hiring freeze, we have utilized more temporary staff 
but she feels that will decline. We have had a contract in place with Adecco for 
5-6 years. The rate we pay the agency includes what they pay their employee. 
Supervisors Kilkenny/Stacey moved and seconded awarding the proposal to 
American Technical Service, dba CompleteStaff and to Adecco; carried 5-0. 

• 	 Award sale(s) of tax foreclosure property 

• 	 MPLA 00086 - Watson said we received one bid on this parcel for $76. Su
pervisor Stacey moved to award the bid to Paul Halstrom. Russell asked 
Watson to explain our appraisal process and how the County's profit/loss is de
termined. We pay an appraiser to do a "drive by," according to Watson. At that 
point, the County does not have permission to go in if there is an existing struc
ture. Our ordinance states that we sell for the appraised value, which cannot be 
less than the outstanding taxes, interest and principle. The parcel shows an ap
praised value of$5,125. The loss is the difference between the appraised value 
and the bid. Supervisor Kilkenny seconded the motion; carried 5-0. 

• 	 JLCB 01023 - We received one bid of$67. Watson explained that we pre
viously sold this parcel, however, the previous bidder chose not to make the 
final payment. The original bid was $100. The County retained the $20 ear
nest money. Supervisors StaceylKilkenny moved to award the bid to Paul 
Halstrom; carried 5-0. 

• 	 01 00253C - We received a bid of$100 on this parcel, according to Watson. 
Supervisors Stacey and Grant moved to award the bid to WFN, Inc.; car
ried 5-0. 

Reports 
• 	 Quarterly Sales Tax Report - October-December 2011 

• 	 Update on tax incremental fmancing district(s) (TID) 

• 	 Out-of-state Travel 
• 	 Sheriffs Office 

• 	 Jonathan Albrecht, Advanced Crash Reconstruction with Crash Date Recorder 
(CDR) Applications, Oakdale, MN 

New business 

Discussion and possible action regarding request of City of Elkhorn for the County to 
waive interest and penalties on a property acquired by the City for the purpose of con
ducting environmental remediation - Bretl said taxpayers occasionally ask forgiveness 
from interest and penalties. Although forgiveness is not acceptable under State law in all in-

Page 8 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

stances, there are Statutes allowing relief with regard to environmentally compromised, mu
nicipally-owned parcels. Du Bois reported that the interest and penalties on this property to
tal $3,091. Supervisors Kilkenny and Stacey moved to waive interest and penalties on 
the property acquired by the City of Elkhorn for the purpose of conducting environ
mental remediation; carried 5-0. 

Discussion and possible action regarding centralization of budgeting and accounting 
functions This item is in the nature of a report, according to Bretl. No action is required. 
Last year's audit findings recommended further centralization. We have been successful 
with centralization in the past but that has been a voluntary move. The sheriff is an elected 
official, his department has stayed within their budget, and he wishes to refill an upcoming 
accountant vacancy by keeping the position in his department. Bred said we are deferring to 
the sheriff s decision but wanted to inform the committee. Graves added that the position 
works well as is. The incumbent will "double up" with the replacement to get that person 
trained and ready to go. Kilkenny asked if the decision to leave the new employee under the 
sheriffs oversight would prohibit reassigning the position later. Bred said we could do so if 
it is later decided that centralization may work better. 

Resolution **-04/12 Authorizing the Closing of CTH A, CTH J, and CTH ES Roadwork 
Projects and CTH 0 Bridge Replacement Project and Transferring Remaining Funds to 
the CTH D Roadwork Project - Supervisor Grant moved to approve the resolution. 
Supervisor Stacey seconded the motion. Russell recalled that the Public Works Committee 
had questions at their meeting on Monday about payment of money owed to Western Culvert. 
Bretl said this resolution establishes the budget for the new project. There was discussion 
whether holding this budget authorization for a month could delay the Public Works Commit
tee's ability to award the bid. Watson explained the bid is good for 90 days. The prevailing 
bidder, Amon, has been informed that we would still require a deadline of October comple
tion. Waiting one month and taking this resolution to the County Board in May would be ac
ceptable. In light of that, Bred recommended tabling the item. The motion by Supervisors 
Grant and Stacey was withdrawn. Motion by Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey to table 
this resolution to next month; carried 5-0. 

Discussion and possible action regarding vending machine revenue - Supervisor Grant 
moved to reallocate 100% of the revenue from the vending machines at the Department 
of Public Works to the Highway Employees Association and to reallocate 75% of the 
revenue from vending machines located at the Government Center to the \Valworth 
County Wellness Council with 25% ofthe Government Center vending machine revenue 
being retained by the county. The motion was seconded by Supervisor Kilkenny. Rus
sell asked why the vending machine profits are paid to various employee organizations rather 
than the County to offset the cost of running the machines. Bretl said this is a relatively small 
amount of money which seems to have huge impact on employees. Motion carried 5-0. 

Discussion and possible action regarding Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) ac
tuarial study - Andersen explained that the study is an update on our current OPEB liabil-

Page 9 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

ity. This is the fIrst time our liability has begun to decrease, according to Lanser. The actuar
ial present value of total projected benefIts, which is the value of all benefIts expected to be 
paid to retirees including amounts not yet earned by current employees, has decreased from 
$35.1 million to $26.4 million, a substantial decrease. The primary reason is that our health 
insurance premiums have not increased. At the end of2011, we had set aside assets totaling 
$15.1 million. The liability earned thusfar is $17.1 million. We have almost funded all ofour 
OPEB liabilities up to this point. Our 2012 budget includes a contribution of an additional 
$3.7 million which will put us ahead of our 30-year schedule to fund OPEB liabilities. Bretl 
explained there are ramifIcations in how we fund this liability. We've made good progress 
but don't want the fund to exceed our obligation because the dollars are locked in. Through 
prudent management by the County Board and good management of our health insurance fund 
since we began addressing our OPEB liability in 2005, we are now seeing the light at the end 
ofthe tunnel. Andersen said we may continue to see a decrease through successfully manag
ing our health insurance fund and premium changes but reiterated that we do not want to over
fund the OPEB liability. She added that we can move money between funds. If one liability 
is extinguished, we can move remaining dollars to another fund, however, we cannot return 
any funds to the County until all liabilities are extinguished. 

Discussion and possible action regarding Walworth Connty's tax incremental financing 
district (TID) ordinance - Bretl said we are starting to see the limits of tax incremental fI
nancing districts. California was the fIrst state to implement tax incremental fInancing (TIF) 
but so much property tax has been taken off of their tax rolls that they have eliminated the 
program entirely. On the other hand, Wisconsin is ramping up tax incremental districts 
(TIDs) with almost unanimous votes in the legislature. By including the ability to make im
provements within a half-mile radius from the districts, the number ofprojects that may be 
funded by a TID has expanded. Milwaukee County really puts the half-mile radius into per
spective. They have a regular roads program but want to save their money by charging the 
roadwork to the TID. This example suggests that we should be very careful in telTIlS of ap
proving specifIc projects. Another example is Delavan's proposed TID 5, which "snakes" 
through the "whole main drag." A half mile on either side of the boundaries could mean al
most any municipal project may be funded by TIF dollars. Bretl added that we don't want to 
be anti-development or anti-cities but he will be suggesting future amendments to the coun
ty's TIF ordinance. Russell agreed. She noted that the City of Lake Geneva is now talking 
about extending the life of their TIDs. While the County and school districts are affected, 
the City'S operating budget is also defIcient because they can't use that money for operations. 
If a municipality's taxpayers are not willing to be taxed for improvements, then she feels the 
County as a whole should not be paying for them either. Kilkenny expressed concern about 
one TID "feeding into" another rather than being closed. The State does not make decisions 
on the eligibility of specifIc projects; that is up to the joint review boards. With municipal 
budgets being more stressed, they may be looking for ways to bring other projects into TIDs 
through the half mile radius allowance. Bretl explained that this item was included on the 
agenda to provide background. Staff are not looking for action today. We do want to en
courage development in the county but not by using tax incremental fInancing to fund pro
jects which might already occur. It's disadvantageous to have everyone in the county pay for 

Page 10 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes March 22, 2012 

a municipal improvement. He reiterated that Lanser, as the County representative on joint 
review boards, has our support to follow the guidelines in the TIF manual. 

Correspondence There was no correspondence presented. 

Confirmation of next Finance Committee meeting: 
• The next Finance Committee meeting was confirmed for Thursday, April 26, 2012 at 

9:30 a.m. in County Board Room 114 at the Government Center 

Adjournment of Finance Committee 

Upon motion and second by Supervisors Stacey and Grant, Chair Russell adjourned 
the meeting at approximately 11:51 a.m.; carried 5-0. 

Submitted by Kate Willett, recording secretary. Minutes are not final until approved by the Fi
nance Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

NOTE: Items distributed at the Finance Committee meeting may be reviewed in the County 
Clerk's Office. 

Page 11 of 11 



Walworth County Health and Human Services Committee 

MINUTES 


March 21, 2012 Meeting - 1:15 p.m. 


Walworth County Board Room 

Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order by Chairman Grant at 1 :29 p.m. 

Roll call- Committee members present included Supervisors Grant, Schaefer and 
Redenius; and Citizen Members Pious, Seegers and Wagie-Troemel. Supervisor Ingersoll 
was excused. A quorum was declared. 

Others present Linda Seemeyer, Director of Health and Human Services/Lakeland 
Health Care Center Superintendent; Elizabeth Aldred, Deputy Director Health and Human 
Services; Juliet Young, Health and Human Services; Nancy Russell, County Board Chair; 
Pat Grove, Public Health Officer; David Bretl, County Administrator 

Public in attendance - There were no members of the public in attendance. 

There were no agenda withdrawals. Motion and second made by Supervisors Hawkins/ 
Redenius to approve the agenda. Motion carried 7-0. 

The Health and Human Services minutes from the January 18, 2012 meeting were 
approved. Motion and second made by Supervisor Schaefer/Citizen Representative 
Wagie-Tromel to approve the minutes. Motion carried 7-0. 

Public comment - There were no comments from the public. 

Unfinished business There were no items of unfinished business. 

New Business 
Meaningful Use - Ms. Seemeyer introduced Ms. Aldred to discuss a program that the 
Walworth County Department ofHealth and Human Services is participating in as a part 
of the federal changes. Meaningful Use is a Medicaid incentive program and there are 
penalties involved for non-participation. Ms. Aldred shared a Powerpoint outlining this 
program and how WCDHHS plans to incorporate the changes. 

Superivsor Grant asked ifWCDHHS has the proper software to incorporate these changes. 
Ms. Aldred explained that the software is already in place. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel asked why only five ofthe six physicians are 
involved in this program. Ms. Aldred stated that WCDHHS has to share claim with some 
of the physicians so it works out to be five out of six. 



Ms. Aldred stated that money received from this program is to improve the technology 
used. WCDHHS is currently working on implementing Dr. First, an e-prescribing 
software program. The department is also in the testing phase for the Visual Health 
Record portion of the program. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel asked about the electronic access to medical charts 
by consumers. Ms. Aldred stated that is not a current option but the department is working 
with Information Technologies on the possibility. 

Survey o/the Health o/Wisconsin (SHOW) - Ms. Seemeyer introduced Patricia Grove, 
Public Health Officer. Ms. Grove explained that SHOW has been to Walworth County in 
previous years and wanted to make this Board aware that this group was returning to 
Walworth County in April and May. This year the surveyors will be in Walworth and will 
randomly select thirty-four residents to be surveyed. Those residents will receive a free 
health screening with a telephone call follow up. 

Walworth County Community Health Survey Report Commissioned by Aurora Health 
Care - Ms. Grove stated Aurora has been this department's partner since they obtained 
Lakeland Medical Center in 2000. Aurora surveyed 100 residents via the telephone as a 
part of this survey. 

Supervisor Grant asked that this item be placed on next month's agenda to give members a 
chance to review this lengthy report and come back with any questions. 

Mission 0/Mercy Dental Project - Ms. Grove is proud to present this project to the Board. 
In 2013 over 1,000 volunteers will provide free dental services for a weekend to Walworth 
County residents. The event will be held at Badger High School. This project is still in the 
early stages and Ms. Grove will update this Board as more news is made available. 

Supervisor Grant asked about the parking for this event. Ms. Grove stated that this 
department is working with both local law enforcement and the Sheriffs Department. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel stated she will thank Dr. Dolan for his efforts to 
get the program up and running. 

Reports 
Income Maintenance Update Ms. Seemeyer distributed a handout produced by the State 
regarding call center data. She explained some of the statistical information. The 
Consortium is working with staff on several areas of concern, including a low answer rate. 
Part of the issue is that the call center has only been active for a couple ofmonths and 
there is still a learning curve happening. There is a meeting scheduled with the State 
tomorrow. 

Marquette County Department o/Human Services Ordinance 2.5001 Interjurisdictional 
Agreements Required Ms. Seemeyer wanted to share with this Board Marquette's 
County's new ordinance which is virtually identical to the one this Board recommended 



for Walworth County last year. So far the Walworth County Intetjurisdicational ordinance 
is working out just fine. 

Worliforce Development Update - Ms. Seemeyer gave a brief update. This topic will be 
discussed at Executive Committee meeting on Monday. 

Mr. Bred stated this item is on HHS Board agenda this month to record any comments 
from this Board regarding the recommendation that the Workforce Development contract 
responsibilities be reassigned to the Executive Committee. This program is an Economic 
Development program and is not a Health and Human Services program. Mr. Bretl is also 
proposing that some of the services in this program be put out for competitive bidding. 

Supervisor Schaefer stated he thought it was a good idea to reassign this program to the 
Executive Committee. Supervisor Grant stated he also supported this change. Ms. 
Seemeyer thanked them for their support. 

Correspondence - There was no correspondence. 

Announcements - Supervisor Grant thanked Supervisor Hawkins for his years of service 
on the Health and Human Services Board. 

Next Meeting Date - The next meeting is scheduled for Apri125, 2012 at tentatively 
1: 15 p.m. following the Lakeland Health Care Board ofTrustees meeting. 

Adjournment On motion and second by Supervisors Hawkins/Schaefer. Chair 
Grant adjourned the Health and Human Services meeting at approximately 212:p.m. 
Motion carried 7-0. 
Submitted by Juliet Young, Recorder. Meeting minutes are not considered final until 
approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



Walworth County Lakeland Health Care Center Board of Trustees 

MINUTES 


March 21, 2012 Meeting-l:00 p.m. 


Walworth County Meeting Room 111 

Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order by Chairman Grant at 1 :00 p.m. 

Roll call- Committee members present included Chairman Grant, Supervisors Hawkins, 
Schaefer and Redenius. Supervisor Ingersoll was excused. A quorum was declared. 

Others present - Linda Seemeyer, Director of Health and Human Services/Lakeland 
Health Care Center Superintendent; Liz Aldred, Deputy Director Health and Human 
Services; Juliet Young, Health and Human Services; Bernadette Janiszewski, Lakeland 
Health Care Center Administrator; Sandy Wagie-Troemel, Citizen Representative Health 
and Human Services; Ella Eva Pious, Citizen Representative Health and Human Services; 
Dr. James Seegers, Citizen Representative Health and Human Services; Nancy Russell, 
County Chairperson; Suzi Hagstrom, Labor/Employee Relations Director; Pat Grove, 
Public Health Officer; David Bretl, County Administrator 

Public in attendance There was one member of the public in attendance. 

There were no agenda withdrawals. Supervisor(s) Schaefer/Hawkins moved to approve 
the agenda. Motion carried 4-0. 

The Lakeland Health Care Center Board of Trustees committee minutes of the January 18, 
2012 meeting were approved. Motion and second made by Supervisor(s) 
Schaefer/Hawkins to approve the minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 

Public Comment Mary Burpee, a staff representative from ASFCME Council 40 was at 
this meeting on behalf of a group of concerned Lakeland Health Care Center employees. 
Ms. Burpee read a prepared statement regarding concerns in the dietary department as well 
as concerns about the new cleaning service. Ms. Burpee also reported that some staffhas 
had communication issues with management. 

Supervisor Grant asked for a copy of the statement and Ms. Burpee handed him a copy. 

Unfinished Business There were no items ofunfinished business. 

New Business 
Food Service Position Ms. Janiszewski stated that the Food Services Manager has 
resigned. She would like to take this resignation as an opportunity to change this position 
from a manager to a coordinator. Ms. Janiszewski stated expenses for the position should 
be reduced based on information provided by other nursing homes. She also 
acknowledged Ms. Burpee's comments and stated that employees need to voice their 



concerns with management staff The Lakeland Health Care Center has regular 
employee/management meetings so that the team can work together to problem solve. 
Supervisor Hawkins asked if there are any minutes or public record of these meetings. Ms. 
Janiszewski stated that minutes are posted on the communications board within days of 
the meetings. Supervisor Hawkins asked that because of these meetings if there is a record 
of complaints. Ms. Janiszewski stated this was correct. 

Supervisor Schaefer asked for the reason that Food Services Manager gave for his 
resignation. Ms. Janiszewski stated that because of all the rules and regulations, food 
service in a nursing home kitchen is very different from food service in other settings. 
This person resigned because he did not feel he was a good fit for the position. 

Supervisor Schaefer stated he is concerned about the comments made about the quality of 
food deteriorating. Ms. Janiszewski stated there has been a lot ofpositive feedback 
regarding the meals. Because of the new regulations regarding resident centered dining, 
LHCC now offers three different types ofsoups and six different sandwiches in addition 
to the entree. Fewer residents may be ordering the entree because they now have more 
choices. 
Supervisor Schaefer asked if there is a problem with food inventory and not having 
enough food for the residents. Ms. Janiszewski stated that the opposite was true. When 
LHCC first started using the new menu/tray card system at the beginning of the year, food 
portions were too large. This problem has been resolved. She did acknowledge there were 
some glitches during the changeover period but is not aware ofany current issues. 

Supervisor Grant asked ifMs. Janiszewski would review the comments that Ms. Burpee 
presented to this Board. Ms. Janiszewski stated she would investigate comments on the list 
and present the concerns at the next LHCC EmployeelManagement meeting. She 
emphasized that teamwork is encourage at Lakeland Health Care Center. 

Supervisor Grant asked if there was a communication problem between management and 
staff. Ms. Janiszewski stated she sees improvement and that the issue is with a small 
number of staffmembers. She encourages these staff members to bring their concerns to 
the attention ofmanagement staffor committee members of the LHCC Team meetings. 

Motion and second made by Supervisors Hawkins/Grant to approve changing food 
service position from manager to coordinator. Motion carried 4-0. 

Reports 
Update on Consistent Assignment/Staff Reorganization - Ms. Janiszewski reviewed the 
consistent assignment plan. She stated that management was closely watching staff on the 
memory care unit because of a concern of the possibility of staffburn-out working with 
the same residents each day, but fortunately that has not been an issue. 

Supervisor Grant asked if there was any negative feedback. Ms. Janiszewski stated she has 
not heard any. 



LHCC Administrator's Report and Financial Update - Ms. Janiszewski distributed the 
February 2012 income statement. She stated that there were no major worker's 
compensation claims. Ms. Janiszewski there were four minor worker's compensation 
claims, none caused by residents. Everything is on target to date regarding the budget. 

Correspondence - There were no correspondence. 

Announcements 
US News and World Report - Ms. Janiszewski stated LHCC was mentioned as one of the 
best nursing homes in the nation in US News and World Report. LHCC has received a five 
star rating for the last nine calendar quarters. She explained how the ranking is 
determined. 

Supervisor Grant presented a certificate of appreciation to Supervisor Hawkins thanking 
him for his years ofservice on this Board and wished him success in the future. 

Next Meeting Date - The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 25, 2012 at 
1:00 p.m. 

Adjournment - On motion and second by Supervisor(s) Schaefer/Hawkins, Chair 
Grant adjourned the meeting at approximately 1 :29PM. Motion carried 4-0. 

Submitted by Juliet Young, Recorder. Meeting minutes are not considered final until 
approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



Protection and 
Rehabilitation District HONEY LAKE 

P.o. Box 565 Burlington, WI 53105 

COMMISSIONER'S MEETING 


ROCHESTER PUBLIC LIBRARY 


March 20, 2012 -~ 7:00 P.M. 


AGENDA 

Call the Meeting to Order 

Secretary's Report: February 21, 2012 

Treasurer's Report: February 2012 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Reports 

2. Lake Project 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discuss results of the court case against Mr. Hinds. 
2. Discuss results of the court case against Mr. Chaulklin. 
3. Monthly bills 

ADJOURN 



HONEY LAKE PROTECTION AND REHABILITATION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
JOHN LUTZ: CHAIRMAN; (re-elected for 3-year term, 8/22/10.) 
JUDITH CORRELL: SECRETARY; (re-elected for 3-year term, 8/28/11.) 
GERALD SCHWARTEN: TREASURER; (re-elected for 3-year term, 8/23/09.) 
MICHAEL WEINKAUF: ROCHESTER VILLAGE TRUSTEE REPRESENTATIVE 
DONALD TRIMBERGER: SPRING PRAIRIE TOWN SUPERVISOR AS OF APRIL 2011 
ROBERT E. MciNDOE: REP. OF WALWORTH COUNTY CONSERVATION AS OF 8/15/11 

MAR. ~ 2012 MONTHLY MEETING: 
Present: Lutz, Schwarten, Mcindoe, 
Absent: Correl; Trimberger; Weinkauf 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. Chairman Lutz read the minutes of 
the February 21,2012 meeting which were subsequently approved. 
Treasurer Schwarten read the February Treasurer's Report which was 
subsequently approved. (copies of these minutes and Treasurer's Report 
are attached, along with the agenda for this meeting.) 

Racine County Sheriff Deputy Don Vandervest was in attendance. 
Chairman Lutz indicated there are again beginning to be problems with 
A TM's and golf carts being driven on District roads. 

Old Business: 

Chairman Lutz attended a second court hearing for Mr. Hinds relative to his 
continued usage of District property as his own. The Judge spoke to the 
official surveyor, Bob Wetzel, via phone for the information he needed. Mr. 
Hinds has continued to dispute the ownership of the property in question, 
but does not have a copy of the official survey The Judge gave Mr. Hinds 5 
days from the time he receives the notification from this court hearing to 
respond. (Sidenotes: reportedly, Mr Hinds is being foreclosed upon; is 
losing his business, and has a $5,000 warrant against him in Florida) 

Chaitman Lutz attended the scheduled 3/9/12 court hearing for Mr. 
Chaulklin relative to the issue of Mr. Chaulklin's encroachment on District 
property along Crescent Place. Mr. Chaulklin was not in attendance. A 
summary Judgement in favor of the District was issued. If Mr. Chaulklin 
does nothing within 45 days of receiving a Court order, the District may 
hire a contractor to remove all of the items which Mr Chaulklin has 
placedlplanted in the road right-if-way. 



New Business: 

The Board approved payment of $310 for the District's website. 

There have been no further discussions with Forrest George, the individual 
mentioned during the February meeting who was interested in doing the 
District's mowing and other maintenance. 

Chairman Lutz reported on conversations with Mr. Kasperzak relative to 
having grading done on the road in front of his property, and then having 
the road "paved" with crushed asphalt millings. 

Pending bills were approved for payment. 

Meeting was adjourned at approx. 7:55 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

-;Y1~ 
Robert E. Mcindoe 3/25/12 



County Board Executive Committee 

March 19,2012 


10:00 AM 

County Board Room 114 


Walworth County Government Center 

100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Draft Minutes 

Chairman Weber called the meeting to order. 

A quorum ofmembers was present, including Chamnan Weber, Vice Chairman Kilkenny and 
Supervisors Brandl, Hawkins and Russell. 

Staff and others in attendance included Nicole Andersen, Kimberly Bushey, Linda Seemeyer 
and Marilyn Putz. 

Agenda approval was moved and seconded by Supervisors Hawkins and Brandl and carried 5 
O. 

Approval of February 20, 2012 executive committee minutes was moved and seconded by 
Supervisors Brandl and Russell, and carried 5 - O. 

There was no comment during the public comment period. 

Consent items. Supervisors Hawkins and Brandl moved and seconded approval of the 
following claims; the motion carried 5 - O. 

a) Expense claim of Rich Kuhnke in the amount of$122.15 
b) Expense claim of Allan Polyock in the amount of$83.25 
c) Expense claim of Supervisor Stacey in the amount of $18.87 

New business 
Resolution Proclaiming April 15 April 20, 2012 Volunteer Week in Walworth County and 
Recognizing Walworth County Volunteers. Mr. Bretl indicated that we were awaiting final 
information about the names of volunteers who will be recognized. Linda Seemeyer said nearly 
half of the rides for clients through HHS are being provided by volunteers. Supervisors 
Hawkins and Russell moved and seconded adopting the resolution and recognizing county 
volunteers at the April county board meeting. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Lincoln County Resolution 2012 -02-08 Supporting H.R. 2250 in the U.S. HOllse of 
Representatives and u.s. Senate Bill 1392 To Provide Additional Time for the Administrator of 
the Environmenalu Protection Agency To Isslle Achievable Standards for Industrial, 
Commercial and Institutional Boilers, Process Heaters and Incinerators, andfor Other 
Purposes. Supervisors Russell and Hawkins moved and seconded placing the resolution on file. 
The motion carried 5 - O. 

Draft 2012 - 2013 County Board meeting schedule. Mr. Bret! explained that the schedule had 
been reviewed by Finance staff, and the finance committee approved it. The board's meeting 

http:of$83.25
http:of$122.15


Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, March 19,2012 at 10:00 AM 
Draft minutes 

Page 2 of4 

schedule needs to interface with budget planning. Election dates and the county clerk's ability 
to support a full-fledged election as well as the county board meeting need to be considered. 
County Clerk Bushey stated the projected date for recall elections would likely be May 8 for the 
primary and June 5 for a recall election, based on the Wisconsin Government Accountability 
Board (GAB) determining that the recall petitions are sufficient and certifYing them on March 
30. Bushey thought the likelihood of these dates was good. Supervisor Russell suggested, 
assuming the days following an election will be busy for the clerk's office, that if there is a 
primary or recall election scheduled on county board meeting day, it be moved to the Monday 
preceding that Tuesday election and County Administrator Bretl have the ability to select the 
board meeting date. Supervisor Brandl said if he is re-elected, that Monday would conflict with 
his town board meeting. Brief discussion followed. Supervisor Russell moved the county 
board meeting being moved to the immediate preceding Monday at 5 PM if it conflicts 
with either a primary or recall election date set by the GAB; and, the alternative [county 
board] meeting date be set by Administrator Bretl without the requirement of county 
board approval. The motion was seconded by Vice Chairman Kilkenny and carried 5 - O. 

Discussion and recommendation regarding P JI (Pretrial Justice Institute) consulting assistance 
to the Walworth County Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee (CJCC). Administrator 
Bretl had provided a memo to the committee with their agenda packet. Last year a competitive 
bidding process was undertaken to contract for vendor support for the CJCC. PH consultant 
Mike Jones has worked with the county for the past year. The support work and activities, i.e., 
interviewing stakeholders and establishing CJCC priorities, has been productive and beneficial 
to the county, stated Bret!, who said he thinks there is value in keeping Jones involved and 
having him appear by phone rather than by video appearance. Mr. Bretl's memo stated this. 
Due to technical problems, not all video appearances during the past year went well. Drunk 
driving court and the early stages ofdrug court are the current focus of the CJCC, which 
supports the proposed plan and Administrator Bred's recommendation. Supervisors Kilkenny 
and Brandl moved and seconded support and approval ofthe plan outlined in Bretl's 
memo to the committee. The motion carried 5 - O. Vice Chairman Kilkenny said Mike 
Jones had been very helpful to the CJCC. 

Discussion andpossible action regarding competitively bidding Worliforce Development 
services. The director of the local Job Center, Marilyn Putz, explained the governance and 
complex funding mechanism of the tri-county Workforce Investment Act (WlA) Workforce 
Development agreement. The Kaiser Group has provided job services in Walworth County 
since 1984. Kenosha and Racine counties provide job services through their HHS departments. 
Mr. Bretl said staff was recommending competitively bidding certain portions ofjob services. 
Under the current paradigm, there are HHS workers at the Job Center to manage income 
maintenance services, one aspect ofjob services. Staff is also recommending the executive 
committee take a larger role in oversight of county job services under its economic development 
oversight duties. WlA funding has been channeled through HHS because that is the paradigm 
for the tri-county consortium agreement, said Ms. Putz. Funds are currently sub-contracted to 
Kaiser Group to provide job services, which have not been competitively bid. A good portion 
of the services are bid but not all, she said. Audits have not identified this as an issue because 
Walworth County operates its job service center as part of the tri-county consortium agreement. 
There are federal rules and regulations regarding "pass-through" funding, including a 



Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, March 19,2012 at 10:00 AM 
Draft minutes 

Page 3 of4 

requirement to competitively bid certain services, stated Ms. Putz. Kenosha and Racine 
counties do competitively bid their services. She recommended job center services be put out 
for bid, with the exception of the "one stop shop" services. She also recommended that funding 
for the "one stop" services continue to be passed through to Kaiser Group. An example of"one 
stop" services would be funding for job training. Ms. Putz suggested the services be provided 
under an MOU with the county, thus giving the county a mechanism by which to measure the 
delivery of services. Kaiser Group is interested in continuing to provide all of the program 
activities and intends to bid when the county puts out a request for proposals (RFP). Putz 
suggested that portions of the funding that serve distinct job service categories under the WIA 
law should be put out for bid, for example, adult services for job re-training and placement, 
dislocatedlout-of-work services, and youth services, which include working with area public 
schools to help find employment up through age twenty-one. She did not think it would need to 
be re-bid annually and suggested a three-year contract. She indicated there are some 
administrative dollars remaining in the current WIA contract, which covers day-to-day office 
operations expenses, such as supplies and postage. The RFP would be for staffmg services. 
Chairman Weber asked whether Walworth County's share of funding in the tri-county 
consortium was still 14%. Ms. Putz said the agreement was recently reviewed, specifically as to 
how funding should be distributed among the three participating counties. A decision was made 
that the funding formula will, henceforth, be determined using statistics specific to the service 
category and will be based on a three-year population variant and reviewed every three years. 
Beginning in July 2012, Walworth County's funding will increase to 22% for adult services, 
and for dislocated workers, it will increase from 14% to 21 %. Youth services funding will 
remain at 14%. Putz said the revised agreement will include "hold harmless" language stating 
the county will never receive less than 10% of the previous year's funding amount. Supervisor 
Russell clarified that the MOU would be consistent with state statutes, Le., not requiring that the 
county bid out services provided by the one-stop operation. Supervisor Weber said from his 
perspective Kaiser Group and the Job Center have served the county well for many years. He 
expressed support of seeking bids for job services other than those that are "one stop" services. 
Ms. Putz said the Southeast Wisconsin tri-county consortium is the only one in the state that 
operates under the cooperative paradigm. Vice Chairman Kilkenny clarified that the RFP 
would be for job services for which the county currently receives federal funding. Since the 
1999 tri-county consortium agreement was enacted, WIA funding has been returned by Kaiser 
to HHS for the administration of specific program services. Staff recommended conducting an 
analysis of the actual cost to administer them. At present, 20% of the funding is funneled to 
HHS to administer the tri-county contract. Mr. Bretl indicated the committee was being asked, 
first, to make a recommendation concerning executive committee oversight ofjob services as 
part of economic development oversight. He also indicated if the committee was comfortable 
with it, staff could be authorized to prepare a memorandum of understanding with Kaiser Group 
for the provision of "one stop shop" job services. In addition, staff can be authorized to prepare 
specifications to request proposals for the provision ofother job services and report back to the 
committee. Supervisor Russell moved executive committee oversight of workforce 
development services, and staff preparing an MOU with Kaiser Group for the provision of 
"one stop" job services; and, staff preparing bid specifications for the provision of other 
job services. Staff will report back to the committee on both the MOU and bid 
specifications before proceeding. The motion was seconded by Supervisor Hawkins and 
carried 5 - O. 



Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, March 19,2012 at 10:00 AM 
Draft minutes 

Page 4 of4 

Chainnan Weber had no reports or announcements. 

The next executive committee meeting was confinned for April 23, 2012 at 10 AM. 

Claims and litigation. Supervisors Kilkenny and Hawkins moved and seconded convening in 
closed session pursuant to the exemption contained in Section 19.85 (1) (g) of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, "conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which 
it is or is likely to become involved," relative to the items listed below. All members voted 
"aye" to convene in closed session. 

a) Summons and Complaint - Carlos and Linda Mont v. County of Walworth, Walworth 
County Zoning Agency, Johnson Sand & Gravel, Inc., and Peter 1. and Shirley M. 
Mainka. 

b) Timothy A. Schiefelbein, Plaintiffvs. Mustansir Majeed, M.D. 

The committee reconvened in open session at approximately 11 AM on motion and second by 
Supervisors Brandl and Hawkins and took the following action: 

Supervisor Brandl and Vice Chairman Kilkenny moved and seconded Corporation 
Counsel proceeding as discussed in closed session. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Employment Contracts. Supervisors Russell and Hawkins moved and seconded convening in 
closed session pursuant to the exemption contained in Section 19.85 (1 ) (e) of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, "Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing ofpublic properties, the investing of public 
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 
reasons require a closed session," relative to the item(s) listed below. All members voted "aye," 
and the committee convened in closed session at approximately 11 :00 AM. 

• 	 Discussion and possible action concerning extension of County 
Administrator/Corporation Counsel's employment contract and the employment 
contract of the Deputy Corporation Counsel. 

The committee reconvened in open session on motion and second by Vice Chainnan Kilkenny 
and Supervisor Russell, and took the following action with respect to the closed session agenda 
item listed above: 

Supervisor Russell moved approval of the issues discussed by committee in closed 
session. The motion was seconded by Vice Chairman Kilkenny and carried 5 - O. 

Chainnan Weber adjourned the meeting on motion and second by Supervisors Hawkins and 
Brandl. 

Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, Administrative Assistant, County Administrator's Office 



Walworth County Land Conservation Committee 
DRAFr MINUTES 

Monday, March 19, 2012 at 1 :30 p.m. 

Walworth County Board Room 114 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

The meeting was called to order by LCC Chair Kilkenny at 1 :30 p.m. 

Roll call- Committee members present included: Supervisors, Kilkenny, Grant, Hawkins, Citizen 
Member Burwell and USDAJFSA Representative Bellman. A quorum was declared. 

County staff present - David Bretl, County Administrator; Michael Cotter, Director of Land Use & 
Resource Management (LURM); Louise Olson, Deputy Director, LURM; Fay Amerson, Urban Manager; 
Deb Grube, Sr. Zoning Officer; Neal Frauenfelder, Sr. Planner; and Joeann Douglas, Recording Secretary. 

Also in attendance -. Nancy Russell, Walworth County Board Chair; 

Approval of the Agenda Supervisors Hawkins and Grant moved and seconded approval of the 
agenda. Motion carried 5-0. 

Approval of the Minutes -Citizen Member Burwell and Supervisor Grant moved and seconded 
approval of the February 20, 2012 LCC meeting minutes as presented. Motion carried 5-0. 

Public Comment - none 

Notice of Noncompliance Fannland Preservation Program: William Wright, Elizabeth Smith Life Estate, 
and Harry and Helen Boehning - Louise Olson said William Wright's operator chooses to not follow a 
nutrient management plan (a pre-requisite) and Elizabeth Smith Life Estate and Harry and Helen 
Boehning both are not taking the tax credit. Supervisor Grant and Citizen Member Burwell moved 
and seconded to approve for this public hearing, as recorded, for these people to not take part in 
the Farmland Preservation Program and to accept their voluntary abandonment of the Farmland 
Preservation Program. Motion carried 5-0. 

Rapid Assessment of the Economic Value of Wisconsin's Wetlands - Louise Olson said the report was 
sent to the legislators by the Wisconsin Wetlands Association. Ms. Olson also sent it to Neal Kedzie's 
aide with no response from his office. Citizen Member Burwell and Supervisor Hawkins moved and 
seconded to have staff send a letter on behalf of the LCC to Walworth County's legislators 
supporting the Wetlands Economic Value study and wetlands preservation. Motion carried 5-0 

Farmland Preservation Program Update - David Bred said he contacted Kenosha County Corporation 
Council regarding their legal opinion and sent them his draft legal opinion. His draft will be sent to the 
LURM staff prior to finalizing it. Neal Frauenfelder said it was his understanding that after the legal 
opinions are given by Mr. Bred and Kenosha County Corporation Council, staffwill meet with Kenosha 
County prior to scheduling a meeting with Secretary Brancel, DATCP. At this time, no action is required. 

Ordinance Amendment for Agricultural Structures - Discussion ensued regarding a proposed zoning 
ordinance amendment to reduce agricultural setbacks to buildings where animals are housed. CZA is 
looking for further guidance from the LCC regarding the small animal units such as chickens. Currently, 
each acre could house 100 chicken animal units. Discussion followed. Michael Cotter explained the 
process is a long way from being completed and the proposal must go from CZA to the towns then back 
to CZA for a public hearing and after the hearing to the full county board for a vote. Supervisors Grant 



and Hawkins moved and seconded to suggest not changing the animal units numbers and forward it 
back to CZA for further processing. Further discussion followed regarding cost of a conditional use 
and the expense for a few fowl. Motion carried 5-0. 

Next Meeting Date Monday, April 23, 2012 at 2:00 p.m. 

Adjournment - On motion and second by Supervisors Hawkins and Citizen Member Burwell, Chair 
Kilkenny adjourned the meeting at 2:00 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 

Submitted by Joeann Douglas, Recording Secretary. Minutes are not considered final until approved by 
the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

2 




DRAFT Walworth County Board of Supervisors 
Public Works Committee 
MEETING NOTICE 
Monday, March 19, 2012 

Walworth County Government Center, County Board Room 114 
100 West Walworth Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

Chair Russell called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Roll call was conducted with a quorum of members present: Nancy Russell, Joe Schaefer, Rick Stacey 
and Russ Wardle. Supervisor Ingersoll was absent with excuse. 

Others present: 

County Board Supervisors: 

Dan Kilkenny 

County Staff: County Administrator David Bretl; Public Works Director of Operations Larry Price; 

Business OfficelPurchasing Manager Peggy Watson; Assistant Public Works Superintendent John Miller; 

Director of Health and Human Services Linda Seemeyer; Deputy County Administrator-Finance Nicki 

Andersen 

Members of the public: 

Tim Glander, N7045 Oakwood Road, Whitewater, WI; Village of Sharon President Diana Dykstra 


Agenda withdrawals/approval 
Supervisors Schaefer and Wardle moved to approve the agenda as presented. The motion carried 
4-0. 

Approval of February 20,2012 meeting minutes (pp. 1-5) 
Motion to approve the February 20, 2012 meeting minutes as prepared made by Supervisors Stacey 
and Schaefer. Carried 4-0 

Public comment period 
No one from the public asked for recognition to speak. 

Regular Business 
Request by Supervisor Schaefer for the committee to reconsider its previous denial of a 
contract by and between Walworth County and Tim Glander's Magic to conduct "Trash 
Time, "The Magic of Recycling" in area schools for the sum of $4,200 
Larry Price said that the committee directive on February 20 was to investigate alternatives to the Trash 
Time program. He said that the collection of "sharps" was coordinated with Aurora in the 1990s, and our 
Solid Waste Department distributed sharps containers but Aurora did the collections of the hazardous 
materials. Aurora has its own paid program now. This year, staff will take part in the Celebrate Earth 
Day event sponsored by Gateway Technical College and will collect rechargeable batteries and distribute 
literature about waste reduction and recycling opportunities in the area, advertising clean sweep and 
passing out brochures. As part of the special "Green Pages", Dennis West from The Beacon newspaper 
will publish news articles and paid advertising promoting waste reduction, recycling and special public 
service programs such as Clean Sweep. There was $4,200 budgeted for 14 Trash Time performances at 
various schools in the area. Supervisor Schaefer questioned whether children are being properly educated 
in the importance of recycling. Price said he feels that the committee concurred that recycling education 
was worthwhile; however given the levy freeze, the question was raised if this program was essential. 
Chair Russell said that in the beginning of the recycling era it was important to educate the public, but 
feels now that everyone is aware of available programs and most all towns, cities and villages in the 
county have a recycling program. She feels the money could be better spent doing more collections or 
forming partnerships with other cities to do more each year. Tim Glander, who performs the Trash Time 

Page 1 of4 



program, was asked ifhe wished to address the committee. Glander said he has been doing the program, 
which was started by former Solid Waste Manager Wade Scheel, for 15 years. He stated that children 
need to be reminded of the importance of recycling in more interesting ways, and emphasized that early 
learning is most important. He said that Trash Time is a visual hands-on program and stays current with 
statistics and innovations. The program also informs students about compo sting and reusing items in 
various ways. Mr. Glander said he would be happy to answer questions. Administrator Bred said that Mr. 
Glander has done an outstanding job with the program. When it began, the county was receiving 
significant funds from the landfill, and now most of the programs have been shifted to the tax levy. Bred 
thought it a good idea for the committee to review this program, as it is the committee's decision whether 
or not to fund it, and it has been a "no bid" situation for the past 15 years. The county has received letters 
of appreciation for the program, but has no concrete data confmning that the program has changed the 
behavior of a child. He added that in light of the county's current budget situation the decision is a matter 
ofpriority. Supervisor Wardle commented that the United States does a great job with recycling and 
there is plenty of education available about it. He feels that volunteers could be used to assist with Solid 
Waste programs and activities. Supervisor Schaefer made a motion to reconsider the discontinuance 
of the Trash Time program. The motion died for lack of a second. 

Request from Village of Sharon for review and approval of "Sharon Cycle Series" and assistance 
with placing signs along the proposed routes 
Village of Sharon President Diana Dykstra was introduced by the Chair and addressed the committee. 
The Village of Sharon is looking for historical cycling opportunities and to set road bike routes for avid 
cyclists. The roads they selected were the ones with the lowest traffic counts. The plan is to establish 
bathrooms and recreational facilities in Veterans Park in Sharon, and cyclists would start the routes from 
that location. They plan on issuing punch cards to the cyclists and give out t-shirts when they complete 
the routes. Dykstra showed an example of the proposed bike route signs and said routes would be marked 
with different colors. Their initial goal is to establish 5-10 signs per route, depending on the complexity 
of the route. The Wisconsin Bike Federation would install the signs, but Dykstra asked that Public Works 
staffbe available to assure they don't violate any sign regulations. Bretl said that the Delavan Lake 
Watershed asked to install signs in a previous year, but those signs couldn't be posted on county highway 
rights-of-way. There may be flexibility under the Uniform Traffic Manual to post a bike route, if it didn't 
crowd the roadway. Supervisor Dan Kilkenny said he is fully supportive of the bike routes; however, he 
wondered if the county would have to establish an ordinance in this regard, and if the signs are placed on 
private property, would we have to bring it to our Zoning Committee? Bred said he and staff are 
researching the issue. Dykstra added that the bike routes would be a boost to the county's economy, as 
riders would patronize restaurants, etc. Price said that the impact on county roads is minimal, as only a 
small portion of CTH C, near Stateline Road, would be involved. Supervisor Stacey moved to table 
this issue until April to allow staff time to do additional research concerning regulations, etc. 
Wardle seconded the motion and it carried 4-0. 

Bid specifications for boilers for Health and Human Services building BYAC system replacement 
project 
Supervisors Stacey and Wardle moved approval of the bid specifications. Price said in June the bids 
and specifications will be ready for doing the entire replacement of the HV AC system. He added that the 
boilers and components need replacing no matter what the committee decides concerning the entire 
system. Assistant Superintendent John Miller said that the county's purchase of the boilers and 
equipment is similar to an owner-direct purchase. He emphasized that timing is critical to ensure delivery 
of the boilers and equipment in time for installation before the upcoming heating season. Supervisor 
Schaefer asked if it wouldn't be more costly for the county to purchase the boilers and then have vendors 
bid more because they didn't provide the equipment. Price said the boilers are very complex and have to 
be built by the manufacturer. The boilers and components were designed by our engineers specifically 
for the Health and Human Services building. Bred said Schaefer's question was a good one; however, the 
biggest problem is the timing on the boilers. The estimated install complete price is $340,000. 
Supervisor Stacey commented that the boilers need replacing whether we do anything else and he 
recommended moving forward. Bretl said that unfortunately if we were to put out a bid for a vendor to 

Page 2 of4 



install the boilers and specified the model, as Supervisor Schaefer suggested, that would push the 

schedule back and preclude installation by fall. Deputy County Administrator-Finance Nicki Andersen 

said we have committed funds for the project but haven't authorized an actual budget Bretl commented 

that there hasn't been a lot of downtime on this project, as engineers and staff have had to work 

methodically through the process to the bidding stage to expedite the boilers. Supervisor Schaefer said he 

isn't comfortable with proceeding until he can see the specifications and bids for the entire project Chair 

Russell said that the boilers need to be ordered if installation is to be done this year. The Chair called 

for a vote and it carried 3-1, with Supervisor Schaefer opposed. 


Bid specifications for hydraulic hammer 

Price said the existing hydraulic hammer was purchased used in 1986. Late this fall, the hammer was 

leaking oil and staff took it in for repair. The repair parts weren't available and would have to be 

fabricated, which would have been costly, and the hammer is past its useful life. Price said the hammer is 

used principally on the freeways for blow up repairs, as it breaks through concrete and can be also used 

for water main repairs, etc. He added that the hammer is a revenue producer, as it gets used mostly on 

State roads. Supervisors Wardle and Stacey moved approval of the bid specifications for the 

hydraulic hammer. The motion carried 4-0. 


Bid award for vehicle parts and supplies 

Supervisors Schaefer and Wardle moved to approve the bid from Elkhorn Auto parts in the 

amount of $18,383.31. Supervisor Wardle asked how pricing is obtained for the vehicle parts and 

supplies, and Business OfficelPurchasing Manager Peggy Watson said that the Shop Foreman and a 

Senior Buyer review a lengthy list of various parts and quantities used in the past. The vendors were 

required to provide itemized pricing. The motion carried 4-0. 


Resolution authorizing the closing of CTH A, CTH J, and CTH ES roadwork projects and CTH 0 

bridge replacement project and transferring remaining funds to the CTH D roadwork project 

Chair Russell asked ifwe have all the outstanding funds covered on the projects, including the lien. 

Watson said that $118,000 is being withheld from the general contractor. She said per Jessica Lanser, 

County Comptroller, that should litigation arise from the lien that risk management funds would pay for 

those costs. B.R. Amon & Sons has not yet provided their final pay requests for the projects. Chair 

Russell expressed concern that there may be other problems/costs that are still unknown. Bretl said that 

those issues would have been identified and filed by now. Price said that our engineers assured him there 

are no other pending liens. He added that he could obtain a statement to that effect from Patrick 

Engineering. The county is withholding approximately 1.7% from the contractor. Supervisor Wardle 

said he wasn't comfortable in awarding the bid for the CTH D roadwork to B.R. Amon & Sons until these 

projects are closed and the lien satisfied. Bretl commented that there is sufficient retainage to close out 

the projects, but agreed that waiting to award another contract until these are closed is prudent. 

Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey moved to hold this item and agenda items concerning the bid 

award for the CTH D roadwork project and final pay requests for the CTH A, J and ES roadwork 

for consideration at a special meeting on Thursday, March 22 at 9:15 a.m. The motion carried 4-0. 

[Recorder's note: Subsequent to this meeting, a decision by the Chair and County Administrator was 

made to defer the meeting until the regular committee meeting on April 23, 2012.] 


Bid award for CTH D roadwork project 

No action - see above motion. 


Capital project final pay requests - CTH A, J and ES roadwork 

No action - see above motion. 


Discussion/possible action concerning amendment to the Purchasing Ordinance 

Bred said that group purchasing is advantageous in the fact that we don't have to reinvent the wheel, 

which saves administrative and staff time, and can piggyback on contracts that meet our specifications. 

The proposed change to the ordinance says that road machinery must be procured by competitive bid 


Page 3 of4 

http:18,383.31


unless group purchasing is authorized by the committee. Watson added that staffwill have to bring 
written specifications to the committee and ask for approval to utilize group purchasing, if available and 
compatible with our needs. Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey moved approval of the amendment to 
the Purchasing Ordinance concerning group purchasing. The motion carried 4~0. 

Next regularly scheduled Public Works Committee meeting date and time: Monday, April 23, 2012 
-3:30 p.m. 

Administrator Bretl mentioned that this was Supervisor Wardle's last meeting and he thanked him for his 
service and the impact he had on how our organization thinks. The committee concurred, and wished him 
the best of luck. 

Supervisors Schaefer and Wardle moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried 4-0, and the 
meeting concluding at 5:32 p.m. 

Minutes recorded by Becky Bechtel, Public Works Department 

Note: Meeting minutes are not consideredfinal until approved by the committee at 
the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

Page 4 of4 



County Zoning Agency 
MINUTES 


March 15,2012 - 4:00 p.m. 

100 West Walworth Street 


Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Chair Rick Stacey called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 


Roll call - Committee members present were Chair Rick Stacey, Vice-Chair Dave 

Weber, Supervisors Rich Brandl, Carl Redenius and Russ Wardle, and Citizen Members 

Richard Kuhnke, Sr., and Jim Van Dreser. A quorum was present. 


County Staffpresent Land Use and Resource Management Department Director 

Michael P. Cotter and Associate Planner Matt Weidensee. 

Present for a portion of the 4:00 p.m. meeting was County Administrator David A. Bretl 

and Senior Zoning Office Debora Grube from the Land Use and Resource Management 

Department. 

Present for a portion of the 5:30 p.m. hearing was County Administrator David A. Bretl. 

A "sign-in" sheet listing attendees on March 15, 2012, is kept on file as a matter of 

record. 


Details of the March 15,2012, meeting / hearing are on a recorded disc which is on file 

and available to the public upon request. Video is available to view on our website: 

www.co.walworth.wi.us. 


Rich Brandl motioned to approve the agenda with item number 8.f.1 removed. 
Second by Richard Kuhnke, Sr. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Item number 8.f.l will be tabled to the April 24, 2012, Walworth County Zoning Agency 
agenda. 

Dave Weber motioned to approve the February 16,2012, Minutes. Second by Rich 
Brandl. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Zoning / Sanitation / Land Conservation Enforcement - Michael Cotter / Disc Count 
#4:02:56 - 4:04:00 

Subdivision Items - Old Business - none 

Subdivision Items New Business - none 

Old Business - Ordinance Amendments - none 

Old Business - Discussion Items 

1 

http:www.co.walworth.wi.us


Discussion / possible action regarding ordinance amendment to setbacks for agricultural 
structures. - Michael Cotter and Debora Grube / Disc Count #4:04:14 - 4:29:16 

Dave Weber motioned to table indermitely the first proposed amendment and 
agendize April 24, 2012, with another option for the County Zoning Agency to look 
at. Second by JimVan Dreser. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

New Business Ordinance Amendments none 

New Business - Discussion Items 

Discussion and Possible Action - Summons & Complaint Carlos & Linda Mont v. 
County ofWalworth, Walworth County Zoning Agency, Johnson Sand & Gravel, Inc. 
and Peter J. and Shirley M. Mainka. Michael Cotter / Disc Count #4:29:17 4:30:36 
No action needed. 

Discussion and Possible Action - Applicant's request to waive conditional use and 
rezone fees for the Brick Church Cemetery. Michael Cotter / Disc Count #4:30:37 
4:44:21 

Dave Weber motioned to approve a $100.00 fee required for the rezone application 
and a $100.00 fee required for the conditional use permit application. Second by 
Rich Brandl. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Discussion and Possible Action - Gordon Polyock Family Trust (Jeanette H. Polyock, 
Trustee) (Jacob Polyock, App). Conditional use permit for grain elevator & storage 
facilities - approved with additional (wrong) tax key parcels listed on conditional use. 
Matt Weidensee / Disc Count #4:44:22 4:46:34 

Jim Van Dreser motioned to approve. Second by Rich Brandl. Motion carried. 7
favor O-oppose 

Amended 3115/12 erred Tax Parcels removed 
Amended 7/21/11 

NAME: 	 Gordon Polyock Family Trust (Jeanette H. Polyock, Trustee) Jacob 
Polyock, App.) 

TOWN: 	 Linn 

A conditional use permit for a grain elevator facility on lands proposed to be zoned A-4 
Agricultural Related Manufacturing, Warehousing and Marketing District, and described 
as follows: 

Tax Parcel #'s I L 3300003 IZ 00028 and IZ 00029A 

2 



Has been APPROVED subject to the related rezone passing County Board and the 
following conditions: 

1. 	 Approved as per revised plan submitted June 23, 2011 and amended to allow 
an additional 78 foot diameter grain storage bin and a dual zoned driveway 
as recommended by the Town as a grain elevator facility with all additional 
conditions. 

2. 	 Must meet all applicable Federal, State, County and local regulations. 

3. 	 Outside lighting shall be shielded and directed on site. 

4. 	 The applicant must obtain all required zoning permit approvals including a sign 
permit. 

5. 	 No fill, debris, branches or leaves may be disposed of on site. No burning of 
waste materials shall occur on site. 

6. 	 The applicant must obtain a County Land Disturbance Erosion Control and 
Stormwater Management Permit from the County Conservation Office. The 
applicant must submit and obtain approval of a landscaping plan from the County 
Conservation Office. 

7. 	 The applicant must submit a road access and maintenance agreements with the 
governing municipality prior to hauling to the site. 

8. 	 All parking and access to the site shall meet County requirements. All parking 
shall be installed according to County requirements within 60 days of this 
approval. Vehicle parking for trucks arriving prior to operation hours shall be 
located as identified on the approved plan of operations. 

9. 	 The project site must be kept neat, clean, and mowed. The site shall be maintained 
in a nuisance free condition. The owner shall be held solely responsible for the 
control of dust, odors, fire, vermin, insects, rodents, filth, groundwater and surface 
water contamination and windblown materials resulting from past and future 
operations on this site. 

10. Implementation of dust and noise control measures shall occur at all times on site. 

11. Any additional Office/trailer or structures shall obtain conditional use approval 
and an approved zoning and sanitary permit. 

12. No general public sales allowed on premises. 

13. No business activities other than specified in the plan of operations may be 
conducted from out of the facilities. 

3 



14. Outside storage shall be limited to the type, quantities and location of material 
identified on the plan of operations. No outside storage areas including displays of 
goods shall be allowed in the required setback areas. 

15. No storage of chemicals, petroleum products and flammable materials shall occur 
on site unless stored in a containment facility meeting State requirements. 

16. Staff may conduct inspections necessary to ensure site is operated and maintained 
according to applicable regulations. 

17. If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning Agency 
for approval. 

Specific conditions: 

18. Grain elevators must have proper ventilation meeting the requirements of the 
State and Federal codes. Exhaust systems shall meet all requirements of the State 
and Federal code including hours of operation and noise. 

19. The owner shall obtain approval of a pollution prevention plan from the County 
Land Conservation Office and a hazardous spill plan from the State if required by 
law. 

20. The property owner must provide a copy of the easement crossing the neighboring 
property for the railroad spur for the conditional use file prior to this conditional 
use being valid. 

21. The property 	owner must provide a copy of the agreement with the railroad 
company providing for the installation and use of the railroad spur for the 
conditional use file. 

22. The property owner will attempt to eliminate the dual zoned driveway by 
seeking rezone of these areas from A-I to A-4. 

23. This approval does not include the additional A-4 area for future setbacks as 
depicted on the site plan. The owner must apply for a separate rezone for the 
additional setback area in order for the A-4 area to be divisible from the A-I 
area on the parcel. Should the rezone for the additional A-4 area be 
approved the conditional use shall be amended to include all grain storage 
bins shown on the plan. In addition, the property owner shall be required to 
obtain a variance for the grain elevator over the rail spur or adjust the height 
of the structure to meet the setback prior to zoning permit approval. 

4 



24. The 30 foot wide railroad spur easement shown on tax parcel I L 3300003 
shall be removed from the site plan as the railroad spur and land is owned by 
the property owner. The note for the easement on the site plan shall be 
relocated onto the railroad spur easement on the adjacent property. A new 
plan showing these corrections shall be submitted for the conditional use file 
prior to zoning permit issuance. 

Discussion and Possible Action - Amendment of conditional use for new outdoor 
structures for Outdoor Food and Beverage at the Lodge at Geneva Ridge. Owner 
currently Overseas Investor Fund LP and was Geneva Ridge Inc. - Matt Weidensee 1 
Disc Count #4:46:35 4:50:00 

Jim Van Dreser motioned to approve. Second by Russ Wardle. Motion carried. 7
favor O-oppose 

*Amended 3/15/2012 Landscaping Plan 

NAME: GENEVA RIDGE, INC. (ATTY. JOHN L. MAIER, JR., APP.) 

TOWN: GENEVA 

A conditional use permit to allow outdoor food and beverage and music 
for weddings and gatherings on the common area of a hotel condominium 
as specified in Chapter 74, Division 4, Walworth County Code of Ordinances, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, on lands zoned B-4 Highway Business District, 
and described as follows: 

All ofTax Parcel #'s included in JLGR 

Has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 The Conditional Use for seasonal use of Common area outside grounds at 
the lodge on Geneva Ridge Hotel Condominium for outdoor food and 
beverage consumption with music for weddings and group events is 
approved as per the plan submitted and amended 3/1512012 with the 
following conditions. 

2. 	 Use of the grounds shall be limited to the uses as stated in the plan of 
operations excluding all uses outside of the Lodge on Geneva Ridge 
Condominium grounds. 

3. 	 The project must meet with all State, Federal and local approvals. 

5 



4. 	 The applicant must obtain all required County Zoning permit including a sign 
permit for any proposed signage. 

5. 	 Sufficient adult supervision must be present at all times when facilities are in use. 

6. 	 The applicant must obtain an approved Land Disturbance, Erosion Control 
and Stormwater permit from Land Conservation if required by Ordinance. 

7. 	 The applicant is responsible for obtaining adequate liability insurance and 
keeps the insurance current during the life of this conditional use. 

8. 	 All lighting must be shielded and directed on to the property. 

9. 	 All parking must occur in the areas identified on the approved plan. Parking must 
meet with requirements of the county zoning ordinance. All parking must be 
graded and surfaced so as to be dust free. All parking for business on site must 
be in compliance with County requirements within 60 days of this approval. 

10. The property owner must obtain the required County sanitary permit approval for 
facilities to be located on site. 

11. Any changes to the character, intensity or use of this site not capable of being 
discerned by the Land Management Department as consistent with this approval 
must be brought before the County Zoning Agency for additional conditional use 
reVIew. 

Specific Conditions: 

12. The outdoor grounds may be use from April 1 st to October 31 st of each 
year. Hours ofoperation shall be from 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m. (midnight). 

13. Outdoors seating, outdoor food and beverage consumption and outdoor 
music must be located as identified on the approved plan of operation. 

14. The proposed structures must meet with the commercial building code 
including all proposed lighting. Open flame tiki torches may not be used 
as lighting. 

15. The outdoor seating for the stage shall be temporary / removable after 
use of the stage. 

At 4:50 p.m. Rich Brandl motioned to recess before the public hearing portion of the 
meeting. Second by Dave Weber. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

6 



Public Hearing: 
Chair Rick Stacey called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Ordinance Amendments - none 

Rezones with Conditional Uses 

Delavan Lake Enterprises, LLC (Dana Montana - Owner), Section 25, Delavan 
Township. Applicant is requesting to rezone .88 acres ofM-2 Heavy Industrial District 
to B-4 Highway Business District. The rezone is accompanied by a conditional use 
petition for an animal boarding and dog and cat groom facility with retail sales for clients. 
The property is identified a part ofTax Parcel F D 2500002.1 Disc Count # 5:36:22
5:51 :26 

Dave Weber motioned to approve with the determination that B-4 zoning for a 
kennel with animal grooming and a pet supply retail is consistent with the intent of 
the Industrial Land Use Category under the 2035 Land Use Plan. Second by Jim 
Van Dreser. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

The rezone petition will move forward to the April 19, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 

The Conditional Use Petition has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Approved per plans submitted as an indoor animal shelterlkennel for pets with pet 
grooming and retail pet supply sales for clients of the facility with all additional 
conditions. 

2. 	 All cars shall be parked in the marked spaces as identified on the approved plan of 
operations. Use capacity of the site shall be restricted by the cars capable ofbeing 
parked in the marked spaces as identified on the plan. Parking must· meet with 
requirements of the county zoning ordinance. All parking must be setback 25 feet 
from the roadway. The off street parking area shall be graded and surfaced so as 
to be dust free and properly drained. All parking areas shall be clearly marked. 
All parking must be in compliance with County requirements within 60 days of 
this approval. 

3. 	 The structure in which pets are boarded and the pet run areas must be indoor or 
the property owner would need a variance from the 1,000 foot setback from the 
nearest neighboring residence 

4. 	 The kennel must comply with all zoning requirements including signage and 
parking. 

7 



5. The kennel must meet all applicable Federal, State, County and local regulations. 

6. 	 The facility must receive proper County and or State septic system review and 
approval prior to operations. Special State approval would be required for 
combining human and animal waste in the septic system ifproposed. 

7. 	 The kennel is approved to board a maximum of 100 pets overnight indoors. 
No pets will be boarded outside. 

8. 	 Hours of operation shall be from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. for drop off and pick 
up ofpets. 

9. 	 All outdoor lighting shall be shielded and directed on site. 

10. The site must be kept neat, clean and mowed. 

11. All animal waste must be disposed of on a daily basis in a sanitary fashion as 
to prevent occurrence of nuisance. 

12. Access approval must be obtained from the State Department of 
Transportation for the business. 

13. If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning 
Agency for approval. 

14. Failure 	to actively exercise this conditional use within three years of the 
approval date shall result in automatic dismissal without prejudice. The 
property owner may request a time extension for actively exercising the 
conditional use. A time extension for actively exercising the conditional use 
must be requested in writing during the original three year period. Any 
extension requested during the three year active exercise period greater than 
one year beyond the original three year period shall require additional Town 
and County committee approvals. 

Specific: 

15. The driveway to the site shall be up graded to meet the 24 foot wide 
commercial access requirements and the property owner shall provide a 50 
access easement on Tax Parcel F D-25-2A for the access within 60 days of this 
approval. The driveway easement and expansion must extend to the west of 
the existing driveway. 

16. The portion 	of the parking area within the adjacent C-2 property shall be 
removed and the area must be re-vegetated within 6 months of this approval. 

8 



17. Completion of the Land Use Amendment process and Rezoning within 2 years 
as required by the Town. 

18. All outdoor lighting shall meet with the Yerkes Observatory standards as per 
the Town. 

19. 	 No outdoor storage allowed as per the Town. 

20. Adequate sound proofing shall be installed 	so pet noise will not be heard 
beyond the property lines as per the Town. 

21. The facility shall comply with Lakeland Animal Shelter recommendations for 
type and density of pets kenneled as per the Town. 

22. Use of the animal shelterlkennel shall be limited to house hold pets as defined 
by the County Zoning Ordinance. The B-4 zone district does not allow any 
animals other than household pets to be on site. 

23. The site must 	comply with Wisconsin Statute 951.14 (Providing proper 
shelter) as per the Town. 

Boss Family LLC (Daniel Boss - Applicant), Section 33, Richmond Township. 
Applicant is requesting to rezone approximately 8.4 acres of A-I Prime Agricultural 
District to A-4 Agricultural Related Manufacturing, Warehousing and Marketing District 
in order to bring an existing contractor storage yard into compliance with the County 
Zoning Ordinance by obtaining a conditional use permit. Part ofTax Parcel C R 
33000021 Disc Count #5:51:27 - 6:13:00 

Rich Brandl moved to table this item to the April 24, 2012, County Zoning Agency 
hearing. Second by Carl Redenius. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Rezones 

Lael Vandenburgh, Section 3, Linn Township. Rezone approximately 2.5 acres of C-2 
Upland Resource Conservation District to R-I Single Family Residential District in order 
to divide a parcel. Tax Parcel IBB OOOOlD. 1Disc Count #6:13:01 6: 16:22 

Dave Weber motioned to approve. Second by Richard Kuhnke, Sr. Motion carried. 
7-favor O-oppose 

The rezone petition will move forward to the April 19,2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 

R. Stewart Properties LLC (Robert Stewart Owner) Section 18, Walworth Township. 
Rezone approximately 2 acres of A-I Prime Agricultural and A-4 Agricultural Related 

9 



Manufacturing and Marketing District to A -4 and A-I to relocate an existing contractor 
storage yard and building to a location further away from a drainage way. Part of Tax 
Parcel E W 1800005. The Rezone is accompanied by a petition for amendment of the 
existing conditional use for the contractor storage area. 1Disc Count #6: 16:23 - 6:20:30 

Jim Van Dreser motioned to approve. Second by Richard Kuhnke, Sr. Motion 
carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

The rezone petition will move forward to the April 19, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 

Amended 3-15-12 

Amended 7-15-10 

NAME: R. Stewart Properties LLC 

TOWN: Walworth 

A conditional use permit for an indoor storage building for an off-site excavation 
contractor as specified in Chapter 74, Division 4, Walworth County Code of Ordinances, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, on lands proposed to be zoned A-4 Agricultural Related 
Manufacturing, Warehousing and Marketing District, and described as follows: 

Part ofTax Parcel #E W 1800005 

Has been APPROVED subject to the related rezone passing County Board and the 

following conditions: 


General: 


1. 	 Approved per plans submitted and amended 7-15-10 for temporary outdoor and 
permanent indoor contractor storage yard for an excavation business and 
amended 3/15/12 to relocate the conditional use to the new zone district area 
with all additional conditions. Outdoor storage shall be allowed in the area of the 
proposed building until such time as the building is constructed on site. 

2. 	 All storage areas, materials and equipment shall be located as defined on the plan 
of operations. 

3. 	 The site shall meet all applicable Federal, State, County and local regulations. 

4. 	 No filling shall occur on site without proper permit approvals. 

5. 	 No outside storage shall be allowed. 

10 



6. Access approval must be obtained from the Town Highway Department. 

7. 	 The applicant must obtain a Land Disturbance, Erosion Control & Stormwater 
approval from Land Conservation Office prior to construction if required by 
Section 26 of the Walworth County Code of Ordinances. The construction 
activities of this development must comply with the Walworth County Land 
Disturbance, Erosion Control and Stormwater Mangement standards contained in 
Section 26 of the Walworth County Code ofOrdinances. 

8. 	 Hours of operation shall be from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday - Friday and 
6:00 a.m. to noon on Saturday with hours until 9:00 p.m. for return of equipment 
from off site. 

9. 	 No burning shall be allowed on site. 

10. If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning Agency 
for approval. 

Specific: 

11. The owner/applicant must obtain County Land Conservation Office approval of a 
spill prevention plan (SPP) and a stormwater pollution prevention plan for this 
site if required by ordinance. 

12. The property owner must contact the State with regard to State Commercial 
Building Code requirements prior to use of the site. 

13. The A-4 area shall be deed restrict to not be divisible from the existing parcel. 

14. This conditional use shall be subject to a (1) YEAR TERM with a REVIEW AT 
THE END OF EACH YEAR as per the Town. The property owner must apply 
for a renewal of this conditional use 30 days prior to the expiration date which 
shall be one year from the date of this approval. 

15. The property owner shall work with the Town road supervisor, and one (1) board 
member to determine the proper time to move the equipment base on the frost in 
the roads as per the Town. 

16. A maximum of four employees shall work from this site as per the Town. 

17. Only work will be preformed on Stewart trucks on this site as per the Town. 

18. No large fuel storage will be allowed on site as per the Town. 

11 



19. All trucks will be kept and worked on indoors as per the Town. 

20. This conditional use shall expire on the sale or transfer of the premises or the 
business. 

21. All Trucks will use Brick Church Road only from the storage facility to Hwy 14. 
All Trucks must use Hwy 14 and Hwy 67 to Fontana and the pit. No trucks are to 
use Brick Church Road from Hwy 14 to Fontana as per the Town. 

22. The business shall not be run from the storage facility. 	 The property owner shall 
maintain an off site office for the storage facility as per the Town. 

23. No stockpiling of any materials (including granular materials) shall be allowed on 
site as per the Town. 

Conditional Uses 

Fred Kirsch (Tim Dieball- Applicant), Section 9, Delavan Township. Requesting 
conditional use approval for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) to allow multiple 
business activities on a single parcel zoned M-1 and M-2 Industrial Districts. Tax Parcel 
FA341400001.1 Disc Count #N/A 
This item has been tabled to the April 24, 2012, Walworth County Zoning Agency 
agenda. 

Kathleen M. Sheahan, Section 28, Sugar Creek Township. Requesting conditional use 
approval for a farm laborers quarters in an existing bam to be made available to a full 
time caretaker of private owned horses. Tax Parcel G SC2800006B I Disc Count 
#6:20:31 - 6:24:34 

Dave \Veber motioned to approve. Second by Rich Brandl. Motion carried. 7
favor O-oppose 

The Conditional Use Permit Application has been APPROVED subject to the following 
conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Approved as per plan submitted as a farm laborer's quarters in the existing bam 
with all additional conditions as stated. 

2. 	 The farm laborer's quarters must meet with all State, Federal and local 
regulations. 

3. 	 Use of the dwelling in the bam shall be limited to a farm laborer who obtains the 
gross majority of his or her living from working on the farm. 

12 



4. 	 The apartment/dwelling in the bam is to be removed at the time it is no longer 
needed in connection with the operation by a farm laborer who obtains the gross 
majority of his or her living from working on the farm. 

5. 	 The owner/applicant must notify the Walworth County Zoning Office if 
the dwelling in the bam will no longer be used for housing of a farm 
laborer who obtains his or her gross majority of income from working on 
the farm. 

6. 	 If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning 
Agency for approvaL 

R. J. Amann Properties LLC (Ronald J. Amann - Owner), Section 19, Lyons Township. 
Requesting conditional use approval for a Planned Unit Development to allow two uses 
on a single parcel. The uses are contractor storage with an office and auto repair. Tax 
Parcel NIP 00002. / Disc Count #6:24:35 - 6:28:46 

Rich Brandl motioned to approve. Second by Jim Van Dreser. Motion carried. 7
favor O-oppose 

Has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Approved per plans submitted as a Planned Unit Development for contractor 
storage and offices with a small area of outside storage and an automotive repair 
shop with a second on-site business sign with all additional conditions as stated. 

2. 	 All storage areas, materials and equipment shall be located as defined on the plan 
of operations. 

3. 	 Must meet all applicable Federal, State, County and local regulations. 

4. 	 The applicant must obtain a Land Disturbance, Erosion Control and Stormwater 
Permit from Land Conservation if required by Ordinance. 

5. 	 The owner must provide a waste disposal plan stating where all trash, drain oil 
and other auto fluids are disposed. 

6. 	 The owner/applicant must obtain County Land Conservation Office approval of a 
spill prevention plan (SPP) and a stormwater pollution prevention plan for this 
site if require by ordinance. 

13 



7. 	 No general public sales allowed from the storage facility and automotive repair 
shop. No business activities other than specified in the plan of operations may be 
conducted from out of the facilities. 

8. 	 On site hours of operation shall be from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. seven days a week 
with hours until 9:00 p.m. for return of equipment from off site contractor work. 

9. 	 Outside lighting shall be shielded and directed on site. 

10. The applicant must obtain all required zoning permit approvals including a sign 
permit for the second on-site business sign. 

11. No burning of waste materials shall occur on site. 

12. The applicant must obtain the required Town, County and/or State Highway 
approval for the access. 

13. All cars shall be parked in the marked spaces as identified on the approved plan of 
operations. Use capacity of the site shall be restricted by the cars capable ofbeing 
parked in the marked spaces as identified on the plan. Parking must meet with 
requirements of the county zoning ordinance. The off street parking area shall be 
graded and surfaced so as to be dust free and properly drained. All parking areas 
shall be clearly marked. All parking must be in compliance with County 
requirements within 60 days of this approvaL 

14. The project site must be kept neat, clean, and mowed in all areas. 

15. If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning Agency 
for approvaL 

16. Failure to actively exercise this conditional use within three years of the approval 
date shall result in automatic dismissal without prejudice. The property owner 
may request a time extension for actively exercising the conditional use. A time 
extension for actively exercising the conditional use must be requested in writing 
during the original three year period. Any extension requested during the three 
year active exercise period greater than one year beyond the original three year 
period shall require additional Town and County committee approvals. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Rich Brandl to adjourn. Second by Dave Weber. Motion 
carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

14 



The meeting was adjourned at 6:29 p.m. 

Submitted by Wendy Boettcher, Recording Secretary. 

Minutes are not final until approved by the committee at its next meeting. 


15 



\Valworth County Board of Adjustment 

MINUTES 


March 14,2012 - Hearing 8:30 AM 

March 15,2012 - Meeting 8:30 AM 


County Board Room 

Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


A hearing and decision meeting of the Walworth County Board of Adjustment was held 
on March 14 & 15, 2012, in the County Board Room of the Government Center in Elkhorn, 
Wisconsin. Those present on March 14,2012, were Vice-Chair Gregory E. Guidry, Secretary 
Ann Seaver and 1 st Alternate Elizabeth Sukala. Deb Gmbe, Senior Zoning Officer, and Wendy 
Boettcher, recording secretary of the Land Use & Resource Management Department were in 
attendance. Those present on March 15,2012, were Vice-Chair Gregory Guidry, Secretary 
Ann Seaver and 1st~Altern(lte~ Elizabeth~Sukala,~~Deb .Gr:ubg,SenioLZo~ningOfficer, ~and...w_endy_ 
Boettcher, recording secretary of the Land Use & Resource Management Department were in 
attendance. "Sign-in" sheets listing attendees on March 14, 2012, and March 15,2012, are kept 
on file as a matter ofrecord. 

The March 14,2012, hearing was called to order by Vice-Chair Gregory E. Guidry at 
8:30 A.M. Wendy Boettcher conducted roll call and verified that there was a quomm. Those 
present were same as listed above. Ann Seaver motioned to approve the agenda as printed. 
Seconded by Elizabeth Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor,0-oppose. Elizabeth Sukala 
motioned to approve the February 8 & 9,2012, :Minutes and dispense with the reading. 
Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor, O-oppose. After testimony of all cases, 
Ann Seaver motioned to recess until 8:30 A.M. on Thursday, March 15, 2012. Seconded by 
Elizabeth Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor,0-oppose. The March 14,2012, hearing went 
into recess at approximately 10:08 A.M. 

On March 15,2012, at 8:30 A.M., Vice-Chair Gregory E. Guidry called the decision 
meeting to order. 'Wendy Boettcher conducted roll call and verified that there was a quorum. 
Those present were same as listed above. Ann Seaver motioned to approve the agenda as 
printed. Seconded by Elizabeth Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor, O-oppose. After the 
decisions were completed, Elizabeth Sukala motioned to adjourn until the April 11, 2012, 
hearing at 8:30 A.M. Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor,0-oppose. The 
March 15,2012, decision meeting adjourned at approximately 9:18 A.M. 

Four variance hearings were scheduled and details of the March 14,2012, hearings and 
the March 15,2012, decisions are on audio recorded discs which are on file and available to the 
public upon request / video to view on our website: www.co.walworth.wLus. 

New Business - Variance Petitions 

Disc #1 Healing - Count #7:34:08 8:34:42/ Disc #2 Decision - Count #8:33:40 9:00:28 
The First Hearing was Jay A. Kelly, owner I Adam Mohr, applicant - Section(s) 21 - Delavan 
Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-162 / 74-175 / 74-181/74-221 of 
WalwOlih County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to create a buildable parcel for a 

Page 1of5 

www.co.walworth.wLus


residence. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires 7500 square feet oflot area and 50' 
lot width, a 25' street yard setback, a minimum core living area of22' x 22' on an enclosed 
foundation, and prohibits obstructions above the height of2 ;h' within the vision triangle. 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a 2774 square foot lot to be buildable, 
a 2.96' street yard setback from Polk, a 2.9' street yard setback from Lincoln, a core living area 
of 18.33' x 34.84' set on posts, and approximately 20 ;h' of a residence within the vision 
triangle. The request is a variance from Section(s) 74-162/74-175/74-181/74-221 of 
\Valworth County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to create a buildable parcel for a 
residence. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walwor:th C~:unty:soar4()f h-~JuJilm~!lJ, 
dunngThemeetingo-fMarch-i4 & 15,2012, for the-petition ofJay A. Kelly, owner 1Adam 
Mohr, applicant, voted to TABLE the request for a 2774 square foot lot to be buildable, a 2.96' 
street yard setback from Polk, a 2.9' street yard setback from Lincoln, a core living area of 
18.33' x 34.84' set on posts and the request for approximately 20 ;h' of a residence within the 
vision triangle. 

A motion was made by Gregory E. Guidry to not approve the variance request. Seconded 
by Ann Seaver for discussion. 

A motion was made by Ann Seaver to table the decision until Thursday April 12th pending 
receiving information based on three specific items requested. Seconded by Elizabeth 
Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board voted to table this item to the April 12, 
2012, Board ofAdjustment meeting in order to receive the additional information as requested 
by the Board. One person spoke in support. One person spoke in opposition and there was a 
letter of opposition from a neighboring property owner. 

Disc #1 Hearing - Count #8:34:43 8:46: 1 01 Disc #2 Decision - Count #9:00:29 9:04:25 
The Second Hearing was Robert Hehr, owner 1Elizabeth R. Olson. Thorpe & Christian. S.C., 
applicant - Section(s) 32 - Delavan Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-54/74-90/74-92 ofWalworth 
County's Code of Ordinances Zoning to permit the location of a residence and attached garage. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a 25' street yard setback (Finch), a 
10' street yard setback (Adelia), a 25' rear yard setback and an 8.94' side yard setback 
(established) . 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a 24.46' street yard setback (Finch), an 
8.94' street yard setback (Adelia) for a residence, a 5.13' street yard setback (Adelia) for an 
attached garage, a 9.36' rear yard setback for an attached garage and a 7.27' side yard setback 
(1101ih). The request is a variance from Section(s) 74-54/74-90/74-92 of Walworth County's 

Page 2 of5 



Code of Ordinances Zoning to pennit the location of a residence and an attached garage. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board of Adjustment, 
during the meeting ofMarch 14 & 15,2012, for the petition of Robert Hehr, owner / ElizabethR. 
Olson, Thorpe & Christian, S.C., applicant, voted to APPROVE the request for a 24.46' street 
yard setback (Finch), an 8.94' street yard setback (Adelia) for a residence, a 5.13' street yard 
setback (Adelia) for an attached garage, a 9.36' rear yard setback for an attached garage and a 
7.27' side yard setback (north). 

A motion was made by Elizabeth Sukala to approve the variance request. Seconded by 
Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board found at the time the residence was 
constructed in 1981 no provisions were made for a foundation survey requirement. The County 
zoning perITiifissued fofthe acces~sorysirucfure garage .r997-was~1SsU(;;d inerroran(fbe:tore--~· 
purchase by the current owner. The Board found the attached garage has existed for some time 
with no hann to public interests and fits well into the neighborhood. The structure was brought 
more into compliance when the accessory structure garage was attached to the residence via a 
breezeway and deck. The Board found it would be an unnecessary hardship to the current 
property owner to require removal of the structure. There was one letter of support from the 
Town of Delavan. There was no opposition. 

Disc #1 Hearing Count #8:46:11 9:02:38/ Disc #2 Decision Count #9:04:26 9:10:39 
The Third Hearing was Gary L. & Terri S. Schildt owners / Gary Allen, Allen Kitchen & Bath, 
applicant - Section(s) 9 - East Troy Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-167 / 74-181 of Walworth County's 
Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to construct a deck. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a 73' shore yard setback (average). 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a 61.90' shore yard setback. The 
request is a variance from Section(s) 74-167/74-181 of Walworth County's Code of Ordinances 

Shoreland Zoning to construct a deck. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTl\1ENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board ofAdjustment, 
during the meeting of March 14 & 15,2012, for the petition of Gary & Terri S. Schildt, 
owners / Gary Allen, Allen Kitchen & Bath, applicant, voted to APPROVE the request for a 
61.90' shore yard setback. 

A motion was made by Gregory E. Guidry to approve the variance request. Seconded by 
Elizabeth Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTl\1ENT FINDINGS: The Board found to approve this proposed ingress / 
egress positively impacts the health / safety issues of a lakefront property. The Board found the 
Proposed deck will not be closer to the lake than the existing second floor deck. The Board 
found to approve the variance request would cause no hann to public interests or to the neighbors 

Page 3 of5 



and would not undennine the purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance. There was one letter 
of support from the Town of East Troy. There was no opposition. 

Disc #1 Hearing - Count #9:02:39 9:09:211 Disc #2 Decision - Count #9:10:40 - 9:13:39 
The Fourth Hearing was Michigan-Wisconsin Pipeline clo A N R Pipeline Company. owner I 
Pat Adams. Wisconsin Electric Power Company d/bla WE Energies, applicant - Section(s) 21
Sharon Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-178/74-193/74-263 of Walworth 
County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to permit the location of a regulating building 
and a burner building. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINA..NCE: . The Ordinance requiresa_~_O.'~(;t~~(:;k fi:()!!l all P'!.QIJertyli!!c;?.:.... 
A.-vanance was granted-on r.:Y9-Trfor·a·~L6T'-slde-yarcfsetback for a regulating building and a 
24' side yard setback for a burner building. 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a 3.5' side yard setback for a 
regulating building and a 23.4' side yard setback for a burner building. The request is a variance 
from Section(s) 74-178/74-193/74-263 of Walworth County's Code ofOrdinances -
Shoreland Zoning to permit the location of a regulating building and a burner building. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board of Adjustment, 
during the meeting of March 14 & 15,2012, for the petition ofMichigan-Wisconsin Pipeline clo 
AN R Pipeline Company, owner I Pat Adams, Wisconsin Electric Power Company d/bla WE 
Energies, applicant, voted to APPROVE the request for a 3.5' side yard setback for a regulating 
building and a 23.4' side yard setback for a burner building. 

A motion was made by Ann Seaver to approve the variance request. Seconded by 
Elizabeth Sukala. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board found to approve the variance request 
would benefit the pUblic. The Board found to approve the variance request would cause no hann 
to public interests. The Board found the surveying of underground gas facilities is not an exact 
science. The Board found the facilities lie on a small piece of land with very limited placement 
options. The Board found to deny the variance request and require the owner to dig up and move 
the existing facilities would cause unnecessary hardship. There was one letter of support from 
the Town of Sharon. There was no opposition. 

Other 

A. 	 Discussion I possible action regarding status of Board ofAdjustment members 
The applicable Board of Adjustment members were notified they may reapply for their 
positions that will expire in 2012. 

B. 	 Discussion I possible action on Township cOlTespondence - none 

Page40f5 



Staff Reports 

A. Court cases update Hamilton Living Trust, La Grange Township 

Board of Adjustment members received a copy of the Court ofAppeals Decision to 
support the decision of the Board of Adjustment. 

B. Distribution ofreports, handouts and correspondence - none 

Proposed discussion for next agenda 

The following items were requested to be put on the April 2012 agenda, if applicable: 

"~""-------~ 

A. Discussion possjhleacti6ii~regardiiig-stahis otBoara-cirAdjustmentl11embers---···~ 
B. Discussion I possible action on Township correspondence 
C. Court cases update 
D. Distribution of reports, handouts and correspondence 

~ ~ 
WALWORTH COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

These minutes are not final until approved by the Board of Adjustment at the next scheduled 

hearing date. 


Page 5 of5 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HEARING 

Wednesday, March 14,2012 


[ PLEASE SIGN IN I 

I 

i 

I 

NAME 
(Please Print) 

I 

ADDRESS 
(Please Print) 

W8723 cryRDB 

I 
I 

TOWNSHIP & PHONE 
NUMBER (Please Print) 

; I 

s,LI4Rofc.) 262-'736- 4121 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION 

Thursday, March 15,2012 


I PLEASE SIGN IN I 

NAME 
(Please Print) 

ADDRESS TOWNSHIP & PHONE 
(please Print) NUMBER (please Print) 

I '-y} ,4 Itl f!-\/ A) u r; Gri ! / 6 ~ &f 6/ I( 7;;< ~- /;/99 
~F1 j()!u~t?AfJ \b'-'k: b/ 

I 

I ~ J-e,. ~-faJf'!L 
i ~ .-J.I IlJkA J ~ASd £ .-{J£5 7' 11)( t'" 6 C)1r ?/.!< Y tJl rJ 
I {f !'

f5'ue z Z 3-- {) -zq I1Av1 \2., 11 ~ Ib?.S-/>blK.4v'r 

PO\3- r\ A O~/\/0LJ W.Q. 21A'€.'G IP .5> 
i 

{ 

I 
i 

I 
! 

! 

I 
i 

i 

I 

i 

! 

i 

i 

i 

I 
! 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
i 

i 

i 



Walworth County Executive Committee 

March 13,2012 - 5:30 PM 

County Board Room 114 


Walworth County Government Center 

100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Draft Minutes 

Chairman Weber called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

A quorum ofcommittee members was in attendance, including Chairman Weber, Vice Chairman 
Kilkenny and Supervisors Hawkins, Brandl and Russell. 

Staff and others in attendance: County Board Supervisors Redenius and Wardle; Michael Cotter, 
Deputy Corporation CounsellDirector of Land Use and Resource Development (LURM); Louise 
Olson, Deputy Director of LURM; John Orr, Information Systems Director; Linda Seemeyer, 
Health and Human Services Director; Tracy Moate, Lakeland School Director of Special 
Education; Peggy Watson, Public Works Business Office/Purchasing Manager; Suzi Hagstrom, 
LaborlEmployee Relations Director; Jessica, Comptroller; and, Dave Bretl, County 
Administrator/Corporation Counsel. 

Agenda approval was moved and seconded by Supervisors Hawkins and Brandl. The motion 
carried 5 O. 

Chairman Weber called for any comment(s) from members of the public. 

New business 
Ordinance No. 719-03/12 Amending Section 2-143 o/Chapter 2 o/the Walworth County Code 0/ 
Ordinances Pertaining to Land Conservation Committee Duties. Administrator Bretl indicated 
that this ordinance represented the culmination of several months ofdiscussions by the land 
conservation committee. Dorothy Burwell, who serves as a citizen member on that committee, 
recommended amending the ordinance relative to citizen eligibility for lake district service. At 
about the same time, a question arose regarding amendments to chapter 2 pertaining to review of 
non-county grants and land conservation committee duties. These proposed amendments were 
included in the ordinance. Mr. Cotter indicated that it's difficult to get county board supervisors 
or citizen members to serve on lake districts; the ordinance amendment would make it even more 
challenging to recruit citizens who are not residents of the lake district in which they wish to 
serve. The county ordinance requires that the opportunity first be extended to land conservation 
committee members to serve and secondly to county board supervisors. If none can serve, the 
opportunity is extended to citizens. There are eleven lake districts in the county, and the boards 
typically meet once per month on a Saturday. LURM staff would begin soliciting in April for 
citizens to serve. There is currently a citizen serving on the Lake Benedict-Tombeau district 
board, who also resides in that lake district. The ordinance amendment would require her 
discontinuing on that board, said Cotter. Chairman Weber asked Supervisor Kilkenny how the 
land conservation committee had arrived at its recommendation concerning lake district service. 
Kilkenny indicated that Ms. Burwell's request was considered, with the goal being to seek 
citizens with a broad perspective that extends beyond interest in a particular lake district. 
Supervisor Russell stated there was extensive discussion by the land conservation committee, 
which endorsed amending the ordinance. Supervisors Kilkenny and Hawkins moved and 



Walworth County Executive Committee 
March 13,2012 draft minutes 

Page 2 of2 

seconded recommending county board adoption of the ordinance amendments. The motion 
carried 5 - O. 

Resolution No. 96-03/12 Approving an Agreement by and between Walworth County and CGI 
Communications, Inc. Relative to Producing Certain Informative Videos and Placing Links for 
Them on the County Website. Mr. Bretl explained that the premise ofthe proposed agreement 
was that the county needed to approve it by mid-March if COl was going to produce high-quality 
short videos about county board organization, tourism and business promotion, showcasing life in 
the county. He indicated that IT Director John Orr talked with staff in Kane County, Illinois and 
Kenosha County, Wisconsin. One county had a positive experience and one a not-so-positive 
experience. The committee viewed a short informative video on the Kenosha County website. 
Mr. Bretl said executive committee recommendations would be included in a work plan if the 
board decides to approve entering into an agreement with COL He said from the perspective of 
the Walworth County Economic Development Alliance (WCEDA) and the Walworth County 
Visitors Bureau, there are positive aspects to producing such informative videos. Supervisor 
Kilkenny said he wondered whether allowing the videos might open the door to additional 
requests. The key to any agreement is the county receiving something ofvalue for the advertising 
link and web exposure for sponsoring businesses, said Bretl. One of the counties had a bad 
experience of advertising being sold well in advance of the video "go live" date, resulting in 
complaints to the county. Bretl recommended a two-year maximum contract term, disallowing 
links to adult businesses; requiring outdoor footage to be shot between May 15 and September 15; 
COl's agreements with advertisers clearly stating a "go live" date; COl providing a point of 
contact for advertiser complaints; and, ads and links generally including tourist destinations and 
businesses. He also suggested a disclaimer on the county website indicating to users when they 
are leaving the county website and following a link to an informative video. Supervisor Kilkenny 
suggested that links to advertising sponsors include a disclaimer indicating the county does not 
receive any advertising revenue. Supervisor Brandl asked about including "opt out for cause" 
language in the contract. Mr. Bretl said both the disclaimer and opt out terminology were good 
suggestions. He asked about the committee's preference as to approval of the videos. Supervisor 
Hawkins suggested approval by the executive committee. Protections in the instance the county's 
web site is down were discussed as well as a provision in the agreement that the county is under 
no obligation to provide COl with the names ofpotential advertisers. Supervisor Russell thought 
a few shots of ice sculpting in Lake Oeneva might be good to include, if that is possible. Vice 
Chairman Kilkenny and Supervisor Hawkins moved and seconded approval of the 
resolution and agreement with CGI, subject to the specific recommendations discussed by 
the committee. The motion carried 5 - o. 

Chairman Weber had no reports or announcements. 

The next executive committee meeting date was confirmed for Monday, March 19,2012 at 10:00 
AM. 

Chairman Weber adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:05 PM on motion and second by 
Supervisors Brandl and Hawkins. 

Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, Administrative Assistant, County Administrator's Office 



Lake BenedictiTombeau District 

P.O. Box 668 

Genoa City, WI 53128 

LAKES MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
MEETING 

First QUARTER: 

Call to Order: by Tom Dattalo at 9:00 A.M, March 10th 2012, 

Present: Lake Benedict Commissioners; Tom Dattalo, Larry Belenke and 
Robert Meyer,Rose Badame, Dan Schoonover. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Reading of the Minutes: Minutes from the Fourth quarterly meeting, of 
November 19th 2011 were read and approved. 

The Agenda: 

1. Treasurers Report: Current balance as oftoday's date is $$23,395.13. 
All Bill's are current. 

2. Weed control: When the water temperature reaches 60 degrees weed 
control will begin. Cost of control is twice as much as usual cost, 
however in that weed control did not occur last year this does not cause a 
financial hardship. 

3. Benn update: Dam monthly maintenance and inspection continues. No 
stop logs have been added to the Dam as the water level is above 828ft. 

http:23,395.13


4.5. Water Quality: No report however testing is to occur at designated 
areas later this summer. 

6. Winter Fishing Derby: did not occur. 

7. Nippersink Bowl: Gary Glatz suggested that a letter be written to the 
Town of Randal asking them to permit the Lake Commission, at their 
own expense to install a 2nd culvert. It is Gary's opinion that the 2nd 
culvert would be at the natural and appropriate level for drainage. Mr. 
Glatz estimates the cost of the project to be $4,000.00. A motion was 
made and seconded: Gary Glatz will compose a letter and send it to the 
Town of Randall asking for approval to proceed with the project. A 
second motion was made to authorize the Board to spend up to $4,000.00 
to complete the project if approval from Randall is granted. 

8. Comments from the floor: NONE 

9. New business: Update on DNR's inquiry regarding the purchase of the 
land for sale at the comer of Tombeau and Powers Lake Rd. (Lastonia 
Lodge) 

Tom Datallo stepped down from his position as Board President for this 
discussion and became a floor participant. Tom Datallo did inform the 
Lake District that the DNR has approached him in regards to purchasing 
the property with intentions of building a public boat launch. It should be 
noted that Mr. Datallo has been fully transparent with the DNR's 
intentions since they first approached him in Oct. 2011. The launch 
would be a level 2 launch allowing for 5 parking spaces, one of which 
would be reserved for the handicapped. A discussion occurred regarding 
the implication of the DNR launch being built. Positive consequences 
would be an improved launch serving the immediate and long term needs 
of all boat owners. The DNR would also then assume responsibility for 
weed control and fish stocking of the Lake saving the district this current 
expense. Several district members voiced concern over the potential 
increased boat volume on the lake. Also several district members feared 
the property would become a park or camp ground. There was also 
concern about increased traffic and parking of boat trailers along the road 
side. At this time it was made clear that the DNR is now only beginning 
the process of due diligence (studying the feasibility of the project). Two 
points where however agreed upon. 

http:4,000.00
http:4,000.00


1. 	 Lake Benedict; is a public lake and public access is guaranteed by the 
Wisconsin State statue. 

2. Lake Benedict is in need of an improved launch site. 

3. The Lake District should explore all launch options. 

A motion was made and seconded to form a committee to explore all 
possible launch sites and to report back to the Lake District at the 2nd

. 

Quarter meeting May 192012: The committee consists of Gary Glatz, 
Rose Badame and Paul and Alyson Kapolnek. 

10. Meeting adjourned: 9:55 am. 



County Board Executive Committee 

Monday, February 20, 2012 


10:00 AM 

County Board Room 114 


Walworth County Government Center 

100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Draft Minutes 

Chainnan Weber called the meeting to order. 

Committee members in attendance included Supervisors Brandl and Russell, Chainnan Weber 
and Vice Chainnan Kilkenny. Supervisor Hawkins was recorded as absent. 

Others in attendance: Michael Cotter, Deputy Corporation Counsel/Land Use and Resource 
Management Director; Dave Ortin, Supervisors of Network Operations - Infonnation Technology 
Department; John Orr, Infonnation Technology Director; Nicole Andersen, Deputy County 
Administrator Finance; Sheriff Dave Graves; Captain Kevin Williams - Sheriffs 
Communications Division; and, Dave Bred, County Administrator/Corporation Counsel. 

Agenda approval was moved and seconded by Supervisors Brandl and Russell and carried 4 O. 

Approval of the January 16,2012 executive committee minutes was moved and seconded by 
Supervisors Brandl and Russell and carried 4 -0. 

There were no comments made during the public comment period. 

Appointments 
Highway Traffic Commission. Mr. Bretl explained that the county board's February 14 ordinance 
amendment relating to the highway traffic safety commission accurately reflects the membership 
of the commission and requires county board appointment ofmembers representing the 
disciplines of education, medicine and law. The individuals Mr. Bretl placed in nomination have 
served on the commission for years. Fonnal county board appointment will be consistent with the 
ordinance requirement. Supervisors Russell and Brandl moved and seconded appointing the 
representatives listed below. The motion carried 4 - o. 

i. Judge John Race representative of the law 
ii. Tom Anthony representative of education 
iii. Pat Grove representative of medicine 

Wisconsin River Rail Transit Commission (WRRTC). Mr. Bretl's had submitted his nomination of 
Richard Kuhnke and Allan Polyock for reappointment to additional three-year tenns. Both are 
fonner county board members and have been serving on the WRRTC for a while. Appointment 
of Kuhnke would be retroactive to May 2011 and extend through April 30, 2014; Polyock's new 
three-year tenn would begin upon confinnation and end in April 2015. Vice Chairman 
Kilkenny and Supervisor Russell moved and seconded reappointing both Kuhnke and 
Polyock, each for additional three-year terms of service. The motion carried 4 O. 



Walworth County Executive Committee 

Monday, February 20,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Draft minutes 

Page 2 

Walworth County Metropolitan (WaICoMet) Sewerage District Commission communication 
concerning reappointment ofan incumbent board member and discussion by the committee 
concerning foture appointments in light ofDistrict pay practices. In January 2012, a letter was 
received from WalCoMet indicating its unanimous support ofreappointing Brandon Johnson, 
whose term of service is scheduled to end on February 28,2012. As background, Mr. Bret! 
explained that following the State ofWisconsin's 2011 implementation of required pension 
contributions, WalCoMet enacted a 5.8% pay adjustment/compensation benefit for its non
represented employees, in July 2011, to offset the state-mandated contributions. The commission 
vote was 4 - 1; Commissioner Henriott did not vote in favor of the compensation benefit. The 
City ofDelavan brought WalCoMet's action to the county's attention in the fall of2011. 
Correspondence was subsequently sent to WalCoMet President Dean Logterman inquiring about 
WalCoMet's 2012 plans regarding the compensation benefit for its non-represented employees. 
A copy of the September 28,2011 reply received from Logterman had been included in the 
February 20 executive committee agenda packet. It indicated the commission granted a one-time 
bonus/comp benefit to offset the required 5.8% WRS contribution for non-union employees to 
create parity with union employees that were not required to make a pension contribution. The 
letter indicated WalCoMet's contract with union employees extends through 2012 and stated no 
decisions had been made as to what would be done in 2012. Mr. Bretl recently confirmed that 
WalCoMet's compensation benefit has been extended through 2012. It was not known how many 
people WalCoMet employs or how many received the benefit. Mr. Bred told the committee that 
the county board's oversight ofWalCoMet, pursuant to state law, is limited to the appointment of 
commissioners. WalCoMet commission appointments are subject to nomination by the county 
administrator and confirmation by the county board. Administrator Bred's memo to the 
committee indicated he was not supportive ofWalCoMet's action to provide its non-represented 
employees a 5.8% compensation benefit. He said he was not questioning Mr. Johnson's 
qualifications to serve as a commissioner but wasn't prepared to nominate Johnson for 
reappointment. Chairman Weber said WalCoMet's decision has countywide impact. Supervisor 
Russell agreed with Administrator Bret! and expressed concern about WalCoMet's action given 
that its operation is funded by taxpayers. She stated that she thought the position Johnson 
currently fills, with a term ending on February 28, should be advertised. Vice Chairman Kilkenny 
agreed with Russell and stated his support of advertising the position. Johnson could continue to 
serve until a successor is named, Mr. Bret! said. Kilkenny said he was supportive of sending a 
letter indicating the county would be advertising the position. He thought perhaps the city might 
have some input or possibly want to recommend a candidate for the position. Mr. Bretl said he 
would follow through on this. 

Consent items. Supervisor Stacey's mileage reimbursement claim in the amount of$18.87 was 
moved and seconded for approval by Chairman Weber and Supervisor Brandl. The motion 
carried 4 - O. 

New business. 
Discussion andpossible action concerning technology support in the Sheriff's communications 
center. Mr. Bred said the county has been running a lean IT department, which has been 

http:of$18.87


Walworth County Executive Committee 

Monday, February 20, 2012 at 10:00 AM 

Draft minutes 

Page 3 of5 

downsized in recent years. Meanwhile, technology demands in the sheriffs office have increased. 
Staffhad drafted a request for proposals (RFP) for support services for the sheriffs office 
communications division, which Bretl distributed to the committee. He said from his perspective, 
two principles should govern the county's approach regarding technology support. First, we need 
to ensure a clear delineation of duties so that accountability rests with the vendor, our IT 
department or the sheriffs office. If the contract for communications division support is 
successful, we might look at expanding contractual IT services in other areas of the sheriff's 
office. The RFP specifies the various third-party [software] vendors. There are many software 
programs that are run on each of the communications center workstation consoles, and there are 
currently maintenance agreements in place with several of the vendors. CAD is one example of a 
software system the county would be seeking support services for. The RFP is specific to support 
services for the programs in the communications division. Mr. Orr said in reviewing the sheriff's 
operation, the focus has been to ensure clear understanding of what the vendor would support and 
what county IT would support. IT drafted a service-level agreement with the sheriff's office, 
which includes countywide-specific applications, delineated from specialized support services, 
which would be provided by the vendor. Mr. Bretl clarified that the RFP has not been put out yet. 
Vice Chairman Kilkenny asked about the timeline for the RFP. Mr. Bretl indicated that 
appropriate modifications, based on input from the committee, could be made before proposals 
are requested. Chairman Weber inquired about support services vendors listed on page 4 of the 
RFP. The sheriff's office has agreements with the various vendors that are specific to the 
software they sell and support. Weber asked how it would work to have yet another, separate 
vendor overseeing and providing support for these various software products. The vendor would 
coordinate and work specifically with the various vendors to resolve any issues or problems. The 
vendors listed on page 4 support their specific software product and do not provide 
troubleshooting or support for the [county] hardware on which the programs operate. The new 
vendor would be responsible to provide that support. At present, this support is provided 
exclusively by county IT staff. Committee members asked about the likelihood of finding a 
vendor that can provide such broad support. Captain Williams said Kenosha County currently has 
an agreement with a vendor for this type of support services. The sheriff's office is not looking to 
expand any of the software programs/services that are currently used. Williams said he didn't 
think the support services vendor would be on site often, except initially. He was asked whether 
it would be appropriate to ask potential vendors to identify, up front, any issues that may already 
exist or perceived impediments to coordinating IT support with the vendors of software services 
listed on page 4 ofthe RFP. Bretl said the RFP could be even more specific than it is. Page 7 of 
the RFP lists county standards. Orr said the IT department would continue to support the 
underlying county infrastructure that runs all of the software for the sheriff's communications 
operations and would not relinquish that control. Vice Chairman Kilkenny asked if the sheriffs 
office would inform our IT Director when the support services vendor was asked to work on 
something. Williams indicated he would, definitely, notify IT. Delineating exactly who is 
responsible for what is paramount, said Bretl. We are striving to avoid any further complexity in 
support services operations. We have a limited budget within which to work to address a big list 
ofneeds. Within this budget, it may not be possible to find a vendor that can support all of the 
services listed in the draft RFP. Bretl said what is being proposed is a different paradigm under 



Walworth County Executive Committee 

Monday, February 20,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Draft minutes 

Page 4 0[5 

which the vendor, not county IT, will be accountable for the support services. The sheriffs office 
will be responsible for oversight of the vendor that provides support services. Mr. Bretl indicated 
tha,t if the committee's preferred approach was to have sheriffs services supported by county IT 
staff, then the service-level agreement between the sheriffs office and IT department will need to 
include performance measures so the sheriff would get work done in a manner satisfactory to him. 
It would also entail providing additional resources to IT. Vice Chairman Kilkenny asked if there 
was a need to have the support services separated. He asked whether the IT department could 
provide support with additional staff at a lesser cost than a vendor might propose. Bretl said we 
presently have three county IT staff qualified to keep the entire county network operational. They 
are stretched thin. Chairman Weber said the RFP appeared to be very comprehensive and asked if 
the committee needed to authorize staffto move forward with the RFP. Mr. Bretl indicated that 
was not necessary today and indicated that money was in the budget to move forward with the 
support services project. Ifthe committee is on board, conceptually, with testing the waters to see 
what sort ofvendor response there will be, the RFP can go out or additional modifications can be 
incorporated and the committee can have another opportunity to review it. Captain Williams had 
recently queried surrounding counties and found that Kenosha County has an agreement with a 
vendor for support services. Supervisor Russell suggested the possibility of including a 30-day 
opt-out-early cancellation clause in the contract. In reply to a question about frequency ofneed 
for support service calls in communications, Williams said there had been two calls for radio 
issues over the past weekend, as an example. He indicated it would be difficult to say how 
frequently support service would be required after a vendor became familiar with the county's 
communications operations. Getting set up will require the most time. Mr. Orr said ifhe were a 
vendor bidding the project, he would quote time and materials. He stated that he was not familiar 
with what vendor Kenosha County contracts with. Typically, a longer contract term will come 
with a lower price tag ifthe vendor has some guarantee ofwork. A one-year contract will likely 
be at greater expense, said Orr. He stated that he thought performance indicators for vendor 
services, developed by the sheriff s office, might be advisable. Orr said performance measures 
make it easy to identify whether a vendor is meeting the level of service expected. County 
contracts include a clause that permits terminating a contract under specific terms. Mr. Bretl said 
the plan is to incorporate today's comments and suggestions in the RFP and then put it out for 
responses. It is likely that the size and duration ofthis contract would require Finance committee 
approval. Bretl, therefore, suggested a joint meeting of the finance and executive committees 
after bids/proposals have been received and staff is ready to make an award recommendation. 
Chairman Weber requested clarification that the executive committee did not need to take specific 
action today. Mr. Bretl confirmed no action was necessary. 

Reports/announcements by Chairperson Weber. Chairman Weber had no reports or 
announcements. 

March 19,2012 at 10 AM was confirmed as the date and time for the next regular executive 
committee meeting. 



Walworth County Executive Committee 

Monday, February 20,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Draft minutes 

Claims and litigation. The committee convened in closed session shortly after 11 AM, upon 
motion and second by Supervisors Kilkenny and Brandl, pursuant to the exemption contained in 
Section 19.85 (1) (g) of the Wisconsin Statutes, "conferring with legal counsel for the 
governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by 
the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved," relative to the 
items listed below. A roll call vote was conducted, and all members in attendance voted "aye" to 
convene in closed session. 

a) Matjorie Geiger v. Walworth County 
b) Notice of Claim - Western Culvert & Supply, Inc. claim against Mann Brothers, Inc. 

relative to the 2011 County Highway Contract 

The committee reconvened in open session at 11: lOAM upon motion and second by Vice 
Chainnan Kilkenny and Supervisor RusselL Pursuant to closed session discussion, no action was 
required or taken by the committee with respect to either matter discussed in closed session. 

Mr. Bretl indicated that during the portion of the agenda pertaining to the next meeting date, he 
neglected to mention that an ordinance amendment to chapter 2 of the county Code of Ordinances 
pertaining to land conservation committee may necessitate a special meeting. He said the land 
conservation committee would be discussing the amendment at its meeting on February 20. A 
special meeting of the executive committee to address this could be held on March 13 prior to the 
county board meeting. Pursuant to our code, executive committee review ofchapter 2 
amendments is required. 

Supervisor Russell announced that the town of Delavan might be proposing an amendment to the 
2035 county highway jurisdictional plan. The county highway jurisdictional committee will 
likely need to meet to discuss and address this request. 

Chainnan Weber adjourned the meeting at approximately 11: 15 AM on motion and second by 
Vice Chainnan Kilkenny and Supervisor Brandl. 

Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, Administrative Assistant, County Administrator's Office. 



L 

Children With Disabilities Education Board 

MINUTES 


February 14, 2012 - 5:00 p.m. 


Cmmty Board Room 114 Government Center 
Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

Draft 

The meeting was called to order at approximately 5: 06 p.m. by Chairperson Weber. 

Roll call - In attendance were Chairperson Weber, Secretary Kilkenny and Supervisor 
Schaefer. A quorum was declared. Hawkins and Ingersoll were excused. 

Others present - Supervisors Nancy Russell, Rick Stacey, Rich Brandl, Carl Redenius; 
David Bretl, County Administrator; Nicki Andersen, Deputy County Administrator 
Finance; Linda Seemeyer, LHCC SuperintendentIHHS Director; Larry Price, PW 
Director of Operations; Tracy Moate, Director of Special Education; Peggy Watson, 
Office/Purchasing Manager; Kate Willett, Administrative Assistant; Citizens Shirley 
Grant and Pat Clancy. 

Approval of the agenda was moved and seconded by Supervisor Schaefer and Secretary 
I<.ilkenny, with no withdrawals, and carried 3 O. 

Public comment period - none 

Discussion and approval of tuition agreement with Wheatland It. #1 School District. 
Moate stated that Wheatland approached her earlier in the month. This is an urgent 
request because the student is young, and they would like to get the student in a school 
setting as soon as possible. The tuition request has been approved by the school district, 
so now staffjust needs CDEB's approval. Secretary Kilkenny and Supervisor 
Schaefer moved and seconded approval of the tuition agreement with Wheatland Jt. 
#1 School District. The motion carried 3 - O. 

Memo ofUnderstanding - Emergency Evacuation between Aurora Lakeland Hospital 
and Lakeland School. Moate stated that she had been approached by Robert Swenarski, 
the Emergency Preparedness Coordinator at Aurora Lakeland Medical Center, regarding 
mutual assistance during a hospital evacuation. County staff is in the process of 
reviewing the plan, which is still in draft form. Bretl stated that we would like to 
accommodate the hospital as best we can, but the concern we have is that in the event of 
a countywide emergency, we would have to coordinate with the rest of the county 
operations as well. Bret! would like time to talk to the other departments. At this point, 
the MOU is infonnational only. 

The committee did not tal(e any action on this item. 

There were no reports by Chairperson Weber. 



2,Walworth County CDEB 
February 14,2012/5;00 p.m. 
Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 


Moate had a report on Senate Bi112, which was approved and signed by the Governor. 
She explained that this bill included school issues, such as renewal and non-renewal 
deadlines. The original deadlines for non-renewal and renewal of staff have been pushed 
back into June to give schools more time to look at their budgets and make better 
decisions with respect to staffing issues. This item was just for the committee's 
information. She stated that non-renewal notices will not come until April or May. 

Chairperson Weber did not have any reports or announcements. 

Adjournment. On motion and second by Secretary Kilkenny and Supervisor Schaefer, 
Chairperson Weber adjourned the meeting at approximately 5:12 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by Tammy Werblow, assistant to the county administrator. 
These minutes are subject to approval by the committee. 



Walworth County Agriculture and Extension Education Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 


Monday, January 16, 2012---2:30PM 

Walworth County Government Center Room 114 

100 West Walworth Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Daniel Kilkenny, Chair 
Jerry Grant, Vice Chair 

WISCONSIN 
Randy Hawkins Sue Bellman Pam Knorr 


Michael Krejci Mary Kaye Merwin Kathleen Papcke 

(alternate citizen members: Kathy Baumeister, Bob Handel) 


DRAFT * * *DRAFT* **DRAFT 

Supervisor Chainnan Daniel Kilkenny called the meeting to order at 2:50 p.m. 


Committee Members Present 

Roll call was conducted and the following committee members were present: Committee Chairman 

Daniel Kilkenny, Supervisor Jerry Grant, Supervisor Randy Hawkins, FSAIAG Representative Sue 

Bellman, and Michael Krejci. School Representative Pam Knorr, Mary Kaye Merwin, and Kathleen 

Papcke were absent from the meeting. There was a quorum. 


County Staff Present 

UW-Extension Department Head Christine Regester, UW-Extension Agribusiness AgentlDepartment 

Head Peg Reedy, UW-Extension Economic Development Educator Joshua Clements, and Walworth 

County Administrator/Corporation Counsel David Bretl. 


Amendments or Withdrawals from Agenda 

There were no amendments or withdrawals from the agenda. Chainnan Kilkenny asked for a motion to 

approve the agenda, which was made by Supervisor Grant and seconded by Supervisor Hawkins. The 

motion was carried 5-0. 


Approval of Minutes 

Committee Chainnan Kilkenny asked for additions or corrections of the minutes from the November 14, 

2011 meeting. No corrections were made. Chainnan Kilkenny asked for a motion to approve the minutes, 

which was made by Supervisor Hawkins and seconded by Michael Krejci. The motion was passed 5-0. 


Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 


Unfinished Business 

There was no unfinished business. 


New Business 

a. Wisconsin Associated County Extension Committees (WACEC) Conference 

Green Bay, WI June 25-26,2012 (enclosure 2) 

UW -Extension Agribusiness Agent Peg Reedy provided infonnation about the W ACEC. The 
flyer in the packet gives some preliminary infonnation about the conference. The schedule is still 
to come. The conference promotes partnership between the county govermnents and the 



Extension Cooperative offices. It will be taking place in Green Bay, with the preconference event 
at the Lambeau Field Atrium on June 24. The conference officially starts the following day, June 
25. 

b. 	 UW-Extension, Cooperative Extension Centennial Celebration (enclosure 3) 

UW-Extension Department Head Chrissy Regester, on behalf of the Extension office, would like 
to thank all of you for your continued support as we celebrate the centennial of UW -Extension. 
The rich history of the Walworth County UW-Extension started in 1914 with first ever 4-H club 
in Wisconsin being formed in Linn. All of the Extension offices and their employees work 
together to extend the knowledge of the University to the community. Extension is continuously 
adapting to need. We are here to help. Office and statewide events are being planned to celebrate 
our centennial. More information on the UW-Extension centennial can be found in enclosure 3. 

Reports 
a. 	 Farm-to-School Summit, January 25, 2011 (enc1osure4) 

UW-Extension Economic Development Educator Joshua Clements explained that there are two 
statewide summits that occur every year, the Farm-to-School Summit and the Wisconsin Local 
Food Summit. The agendas for both events were included in packet. The Farm-to-School Summit 
has different tracks to choose from in each session, with presenters primarily from Wisconsin. 
There is growing interest in Farm-to-School programs, especially with school districts. Clements 
doesn't know anyone who has emphasis on these programs right now in Walworth County. 
Information about the summit was distributed throughout the county to school districts and 
administrators. Statewide Extension specialists were the principal organizers of the summit, with 
the information directed more toward school districts than producers. 

b. 	 Wisconsin Local Food Summit January 26-27,2012 (enclosure 5) 

Clements explained there are five different groups of presentations in each breakout session for 
the Wisconsin Local Food Summit. The summit is put on by Extension staff, with local producers 
providing the food served. Clements stated there is a growing emphasis on food systems at the 
state level, both in producing and economic developing. They are looking for a way to collaborate 
more in the future. Krejci asked if there have been efforts made to connect the Master Gardener 
Volunteers with schools to cultivate experience. Regester answered that we have reached out to 
many schools, but most schools don't have children during the growing season. We are beginning 
to work with afterschool and summer school programs. Children are brought out to the 
community gardens, and we also have classes with them. Weare just starting to explore outreach 
in that area, and we are trying to frod logistics to keep it going. We have been exploring different 
vegetables, plants, and even butterfly gardens with different classes and schools. 

c. 	 Upcoming UWEX educational programs (enclosure 6-12) 

Regester talked about some of our upcoming programs, as found in enclosures 6-12: Raising 
Healthy Eaters, Kids in the Kitchen, Child Abuse and Mandated Reporting, Sensational Soups, 
QuickBooks for Farm Financial Recordkeeping, Social Media, and Annie's Project. Most of our 
programs are listed online. Krejci asked about the extent of mandated reporters. Bred explained 
that the state extended the context of mandatory reporters to include sports, teachers, and support 
staff, and also, all staff in UW -Extension and Extension volunteers are mandated reporters. Krejci 
asked about the flyers and if Hispanics are invited. Regester answered that WNEP does programs 
in Spanish, but if contacted, Extension will always provide an interpreter. 

The ExtensionCord, enclosure 12, gives a summary of some of the UW -Extension program 
successes. 



Set/confirm next meeting date and time 
The next meeting will be Monday, March 19,2012 at 2:30 p.m. in Room 114 at the Government Center. 

Adjournment 
Committee Chairman Kilkenny asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 3:08 p.m. The motion was 
made by Supervisor Hawkins and seconded by FSAI Ag Representative Bellman. The motion was carried 
5-0. 

Submitted by Brittany Wierzbach, recording secretary, minutes are in draft form until approved by the 
AEE Committee at the March 19,2012 meeting. 



• 

Booth Lake Management District 
P. O. Box 778 

East Troy, WI 53120 
Phone: 262-642-7404 Fax: 262-642-7493 Email: 

NOTICE OF 
Booth Lake Management District Commissioners Meeting 


Thursday, December 22, 2011 at 7:00 PM 

Town of Troy Town Hall, N8870 Briggs Street 


AGENDA 

1. Call meeting to order 
2. Approve minutes of the Meeting of July 17,2011 
3. Treasurer's Report 
4. Chairperson's Report 
5. Audit Committee 
6. Old Business 
7. New Business 
8. Adjourn 

Respectfully submitted 
G. M. Hegeman 

Commissioner/Secretary 

December 3, 2011 




BOOTH LAKE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

P.O. BOX 778 


EAST TROY, WISCONSIN 53120-0778 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BLMD COMMISSIONERS 


December 22, 2011 


Present: 
Hank Hubbell, Bill Sullivan, Gary Hegeman, Stan Muzatko (County Board Rep.), Kathy 
Tober (Town Board Rep.), Pat Jessup, Chief. Water Patrol (Guest). One other 
individual was in attendance. 

1. 	 Meeting called to order at 7:04 pm. 

2. 	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
July 17. 2011 Meeting 
Motion for approval of the minutes of the July 17, 2011 meeting by Stan Muzatko, 
2nd by Bill Sullivan. Motion approved. Hank Hubbell noted he did not send a letter to 
the Town Chair concerning Booth Lake ordinances as he had an opportunity to meet 
with the group reviewing the ordinances instead. 

3. 	 TREASURER'S REPORT 
Motion for approval of the Treasurer's report (attached) by Gary Hegeman, 2nd by 
Stan Muzatko. Motion approved. Bill Sullivan noted all assets/funds have now been 
transferred to the First Citizens State Bank. 

4. 	 CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT 
-	 Water Quality Analysis: Hank Hubbell discussed the continuing problem with 

high nitrogen levels in Booth Lake discovered with the Spring water sampling. 
Hank indicated another sample was sent to UW-Stevens Point for more detailed 
testing in August. This sample continued to show high nitrogen levels although 
there appeared to have been some improvement. Results from a recent Fall 
sample are pending. Hank has discussed the problem with the lab manager 
where testing is done, and is seeking input from the DNR as well as information 
on available resources to help understand and manage the high nitrogen level 
problem. Hank will keep the Commissioner's advised on future developments. 
Weed Control: Hank noted the second treatment for Eurasian water-milfoil 
seemed to work well. He is hopeful the area needing treatment will be smaller 
next year and treatment costs will be less. 

5. 	 AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Marlene Bialek and Kathy Jens have indicated a desire to discontinue participation 
on the Audit Committee. The Commissioners discussed possible replacements. 
Hank will contact individuals identified as potential auditors to determine their 
interest in working on the Audit Committee. 

6. 	 OLD BUSINESS 
Weed Control: Stan Muzatko presented and briefly discussed an article about using 
the milfoil weevil to control Eurasian water-milfoil in Booth Lake. Hank Hubbell 
mentioned this type of treatment had previously been considered. but it was 



-. 


determined Booth Lake was not suitable for this type of treatment because of 
boating activity, shoreline development, lack of suitable habitat for the milfoil weevil, 
and cost considerations. 

7. 	 NEW BUSINESS 
Pat Jessup, Chief Water Patrol, discussed problems with ordinances effecting Booth 
Lake and efforts to make some changes. He was especially interested in providing 
information to and obtaining feedback from the BLMD Commissioners and 
members, and does not want to be in conflict with Booth Lake residents. There are 
two problems the Water Patrol is especially interested in addressing: 
- The language in the ordinances refers to water skiing, but some questions have 

arisen if the term "water-skiing" also includes wake boarding, knee boarding and 
tubing. Also, the ordinances refer to water skiing in different ways. They would 
like to clarify that ''water-skiing'' includes wake boarding, knee boarding, tubing 
and any other similar activities and improve consistency in the language. 

- The channel between the island and the shoreline has traditionally been 
considered and marked as a Slow No Wake area. Because of high water levels, 
if the distance between the island and the shoreline exceeds 300 feet, then there 
would technically be no legal backing to enforce the Slow No Wake designation. 
The Water Patrol would like to include language in the ordinances that 
specifically designates the channel between the island and the shoreline as a 
Slow No Wake area. 

The Commissioners discussed these problem areas. They supported the Water 
Patrol's efforts to clarify ordinance language and did not see any objection to 
designating the channel between the island and the shoreline as a Slow No Wake 
area as it has been treated as a Slow No Wake area for many years. 

7. 	 Motion to adjourn the meeting by Bill Sullivan. 2nd by Stan Muzatko. Meeting 
adjourned at 7:48 pm. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Gary Hegeman - BLMD Secretary 




----------------------

.. 


BOOTH LAKE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT TREASURER'S REPORT 


DEC 12, 2011 
OPENING BALANCES 

CHECKING-CITIZENS F & M JUNE 30, 2011 $5,216.86 
CHECKING FIRST CITIZENS JUNE 30, 2011 $4,723.51 
CD'S F & M BANK JUNE 30, 2011 $8,109.54 
CD'S FIRST CITIZENS JUNE 30, 2011 $15,000.00 

-------------------- $33,049.91 
REVENUE 

TAX LEVY $950.89 
TROY, TOWN OF $500.00 
IINTEREST INCOIVIE $360.69 

------------------ $1,811.58 
EXPENDITURES 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $234.84 
EDUCATION $120.00 
INSURANCE $0.00 
LAKE MANAGEMENT $8,273.75 
LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL $0.00 
MAINTENANCE $0.00 
SEPTIC SYSTEM PUMPING $0.00 
WATER QUALITY STUDY $68.00 

--------------------- $8,696.59 
REDEEMED CD'S 

CD'S F & M BANK $8,109.54 
-------------------- $8,109.54 

PURCHASED CD'S 
CD FIRST CIT 15 MO $5,000.00 
CH FIRST CIT 15 MO $4,000.00 

-------------------- $9,000.00 

CLOSING BALANCES 
CHECKING F & M BANK NOV 30,2011 $0.00 
CHECKING FIRST CITIZENS ST BK NOV 30,2011 $2,164.90 
CD'S F & M BANK NOV 30,2011 $0.00 
CD'S FIRST CITIZENS ST BK NOV 30,2011 $24,000.00 

-------------------- $26,164.90 

* 

http:26,164.90
http:24,000.00
http:2,164.90
http:9,000.00
http:4,000.00
http:5,000.00
http:8,109.54
http:8,109.54
http:8,696.59
http:8,273.75

